CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
PLANNING COMMISSION
AGENDA

WORK SESSION MEETING
AND
REGULAR MEETING

September 14, 2015
Meridian Municipal Building
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, M| 48864
Work Session Meeting — Administrative Conference Room
1. Call meeting to order at approximately 6:00 p.m.
2. Approval of agenda
3. Discussion
A. 2005 Master Plan RFQ responses
4. Public Remarks

5. Adjournment

Regular Meeting — Town Hall Room
1. Call meeting to order at approximately 7:00 p.m.
2. Approval of agenda

A. August 24, 2015 Work Session Meeting
B. August 24, 2015 Regular Meeting

3. Approval of minutes
4, Public remarks
5. Communications

Communications received and distributed at the August 24, 2015 meeting and placed on
file:

A Marian and Jack Fordyce RE:  SUP #15111 (Williams)

6. Public Hearings




Planning Commission Agenda
September 14, 2015

Page 2

10.

A

Rezoning #00150 (St. King), request to rezone 4660 Marsh Road from RC (Multiple
Family, Medium Density) to PO (Professional and Office)

SUP #15-14051 (Department of Parks & Recreation), request to impact the 100-

year floodplain associated with replacing the Wonch Park Pavilion and portions of
the internal sidewalk at 4555 Okemos Road, Okemos.

Unfinished Business

A

Special Use Permit #15111 (Williams), request to work in the floodplain to construct
a deck at 2568 Tekonsha

Rezoning #15040 (Mayberry Homes), request for conditional rezoning of
approximately 25.5 acres located on the east side of Powell Road from RR (Rural
Residential) and CR (Commercial Recreation) to RAA (Single Family-Low Density)

Rezoning #15050 (Stockwell Development Group), request to rezone two parcels
totaling approximately nine acres located on the northwest corner of Grand River
Avenue and Powell Road from PO (Professional and Office) to C-3 (Commercial)

Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #15034 (Meridian Investment Group),
request to redevelop 4970 to 5030 Northwind Drive by replacing five office buildings
with one mixed use building and three apartment buildings

Special Use Permit #15121 (Meridian Investment Group), request for a group of
buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in gross floor area at 4970 to 5030
Northwind Drive

Zoning Amendment #14010 (Township Board), request to amend the zoning
ordinance to establish definitions and standards for the medical use of marihuana

Other Business

Township Board, Planning Commission officer, committee chair, and staff comment or
reports

A.

B.

Future Projects/New Applications
Update of Ongoing Projects
i. Site Plans Received
1. Site Plan Review #15-07 (Campus Village Development), develop a
mixed use planned unit development, the Square on Grand River

(formerly The Avenue),-consisting of existing and new buildings at
2655 Grand River

i. Site Plans Approved - NONE

Public Remarks



Planning Commission Agenda
September 14, 2015
Page 3

The Planning Commission's Bylaws state agenda items shall not be introduced for discussion or
public hearing that is opened after 10:00 p.m. The chair may approve exceptions when this rule
would cause substantial backlog in Commission business (Rule 5.14 Limit on Introduction of

Agenda ltems).

Persons wishing to appeal a decision of the Planning Commission to the Township Board in the
granting of a Special Use Permit must do so within ten (10) days of the decision of the Planning
Commission (Sub-section 86-189 of the Zoning Ordinance)



TENTATIVE
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA

Work Session Meeting
and
Regular Meeting
September 28, 2015

Meridian Municipal Building
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, M| 48864

Work Session Meeting — Administrative Conference Room
A. 2005 Master Plan Update
Regular Meeting — Town Hall Room
1. Public Hearings
A. Rezoning #15030 (Sumbal), request to rezone approximately 1.4 acres
addressed as 1998 Jolly Road from RR (Rural Residential) to RA (Single Family,

Medium Density) with the offer of a condition to retain RR zoning if a variance for
a shared driveway is not granted by the Zoning Board of Appeals

2, Unfinished Business

A. Rezoning #00150 (St. King) request to rezone 4660 Marsh Road from RC
(Multiple Family, Medium Density) to PO (Professional and Office)

B. SUP #15-14051 (Department of Parks & Recreation), request to impact the 100-
year floodplain associated with replacing the Wonch Park Pavilion and portions
of the internal sidewalk at 4555 Okemos Road, Okemos.

2. Other Business

G:\PLANNING\Plan Comm\AGENDAS\2015\9-14-15 agenda.doc



PRESENT:

ABSENT:
STAFF:

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
PLANNING COMMISSION RA
WORK SESSION MINUTES D FT

August 24, 2015

5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, M1 48864-1198
Town Hall Rom, 517-853-4560

Chair Scott-Craig, Vice-Chair Jackson (6:12), Commissioners Deits, Cordill, Ianni,
Tenaglia (6:15), and Van Coevering, (6:10)

Commissioners Honicky and DeGroff

Principal Planner Gail Oranchak

1. Call meeting to order
Chair Scott-Craig called the work session meeting to order at approximately 6:05 P.M.

2. Approval of agenda
Agenda accepted as written

3. Discussion

A. Recap of the August 18, 2015 Township Board Meeting

B. New round of Citizen Planner classes to be held

C. ZA #14010 (Township Board) Medical Marihuana

Regulatory powers under current statute, model statute

Questions broader than the ordinance addresses,

Medical marihuana as a land use issue

Conflict between medical marihuana statute and possession of a controlled substance within
1,000 feet of a school

Limitation on the number of plants that can be grown in a residence

Minimal restriction of homeowner rights

Township Board initiated the amendment classifying growing as a home occupation
Lacks protection of children in the home,

Has he attorney reviewed the ordinance, identified problems as a home occupation
Requests attorney review prior to Planning Commission vote

D. 2005 Master Plan Update —Request for Proposals

Six responses to the RFQ

Examples of consultants not focused on Township goals: focus on public input, engineering
oriented, no need for additional charrette, too much on parks,

One submission with superior user interface, ease of updating by Township

Committee will meet to review and report back: seasoned vs. younger with new ideas; mix of
men and women, review recent work

Quantifiable outcomes important



Planning Commission Work Session Meeting Minutes
August 24, 2015 - DRAFT
Page 2

6. Adjournment

Chair Scott-Craig adjourned the meeting at approximately 6:55 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

Gail Oranchak, AICP
Principal Planner



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN |
PLANNING COMMISSION DRAFT
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
August 24,2015

5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864-1198
853-4000, Town Hall Room, 7:00 P.M.

PRESENT: Commissioners Cordill, Deits, lanni, Jackson, Scott-Craig, Tenaglia, Van Coevering
ABSENT: Commissioners DeGroff, Honicky
STAFF: Principal Planner Oranchak, Associate Planners Brown, Wyatt

1. Call meeting to order
Chair Scott-Craig called the regular meeting to order at 7:01 P.M.

2. Approval of agenda
Commissioner Cordill moved to approve the agenda. Seconded by Commissioner Jackson.

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried 7-0.

3. Approval of Minutes
Commissioner Ianni moved to approve the Work Session Meeting Minutes of July 27, 2015 as
amended and the August 10, 2015 and the Regular Meeting Minutes of August 10, 2015 as
submitted. Seconded by Commissioner Deits.

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried 7-0.

4. Public Remarks
Chair Scott-Craig opened and closed the floor for public remarks.

5. Communications
Communications received and distributed at the July 27, 2015 meeting and placed on file:

A. Ann Zimmerman, 2344 Coyote Creek, Okemos; RE: MUPUD #15024/SUP #15101 (Forsberg)
B. Stacy Bogard, 2340 Coyote Creek, Okemos; RE: MUPUD #15024/SUP #15101 (Forsberg)

6. Public hearings
A. Special Use Permit #15111 (Williams), request to work in the floodplain to construct a deck at

2568 Tekonsha

Chair Scott-Craig opened the public hearing at 7:04 P.M.

¢ Introduction by the Chair (announcement of procedures, time limits and protocols for public
participation and applicants)

e Summary of subject matter

Associate Planner Brown summarized the special use permit (SUP) request as outlined in
staff memorandum dated August 20, 2015.

e Applicant



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT-
August 24, 2015
Page 2

Brad Williams, 2568 Tekonsha Trail, Okemos, stated when he purchased his home three (3) years
ago, he was not aware his property was in the floodplain, but was aware the sun room had a flat
roof and leaked. He noted he is adding a stairway to the replacement deck, as the existing deck
did not have a stairway into the yard.

Planning Commission discussion:
Commissioner Jackson stated since there is a change to the floodplain, is it necessary to obtain a
Letter of Map Revision (LOMR).

Associate Planner Brown responded LOMRs are requested for larger scale projects and the house
is not being taken out of the floodplain. He added the amount of structural volume is being
reduced, which increases the storage capacity of the floodplain.

Chair Scott-Craig expressed appreciation the applicant has received all necessary approvals from
the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ), the Township Chief Engineer, etc.
He indicated his review clearly demonstrates this project provides an improvement in the
floodplain and water carrying capacity, while acknowledging many of homes located in that
subdivision would not be allowed if built today.

Commissioner Deits stated the applicant was unaware his home was in the floodplain, and
inquired how a purchaser would become aware of that circumstance.

Associate Planner Brown hoped the previous owner and or realtor would divulge such
information, stating lending institutions usually err on the side of caution where flood insurance is
required.

Mr. Williams added the previous residents owned their home for 20 years, and may not have been
aware flood lines had been drawn to include the home and, consequently, did not purchase flood
insurance.

Associated Planner Brown stated that long term homeowners often do not know their property is
in the floodplain until they refinance their home.

Chair Scott-Craig closed the public hearing at 7:15 P.M.
. Rezoning #15040 (Mayberry Homes), request to conditionally rezone approximately 25.5 acres

located on the east side of Powell Road from RR (Rural Residential) and CR (Commercial
Recreation) to RAA (Single Family-Low Density)

Chair Scott-Craig opened the public hearing at 7:15 P.M.

e Summary of subject matter
Principal Planner Oranchak summarized the proposed rezoning request as outlined in staff
memorandum dated August 20, 2015.

Chair Scott-Craig inquired if the drain to the south flows north and, if so, the Ingham County
Drain Commissioner would need to be involved.

Principal Planner Oranchak responded she believed that was the case and as the project
moves forward, ICDC involvement would be part of the review.

e Applicant



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT-
August 24, 2015
Page 3

Scott Fairmont, 4429 Apache Drive, Okemos, indicated the area north of the proposed site is
owned by Okemos Public Schools and the site is planned for a future elementary school. He
added that further north on Powell Road is the Georgetown subdivision, so the area is starting to
develop. Mr. Fairmont added the proposed site is constrained by wetlands and drains, adding the
ICDC has given tentative approval for a drain crossing and relocation of the drain on the eastern
edge of the site to “work” with the neighborhood. He indicated the preliminary layout of the
neighborhood avoids all wetlands short of crossing the drain. Mr. Fairmont noted the rezoning to
RAA would allow for lots 100 feet in width and 167 feet in depth conditioned on no more than 25

lots. He placed the layout on the overhead projector.

e Public
Cindy Liu, 1575 Maiden Lane, Okemos, and owner of the vacant parcel on the other side of
Powell Road, inquired if the developer would be paving Powell Road between the entrance and

Grand River Avenue, if there would be the option to have public water and sewer and if a natural

gas line would installed for homes in the development.

Planning Commission discussion:
Commissioner Van Coevering asked if the proposed development would be impacted by the study
of the Daniels Drain, the drain which goes under Grand River Avenue.

Principal Planner Oranchak responded The Ponds drain which is being looked at on the south side
of Grand River is part of the Daniels Drain. She was unclear whether the study would extend to
the north side of Grand River Avenue and did not know if it would have an impact on the subject
project.

Commissioner Deits addressed staff mention of establishing a policy with respect to the
perpetuation of this hypothetical community septic system. He inquired if this was something the
Planning Commission would develop.

Principal Planner Oranchak replied the language would be prepared by staff and go before the
Township Board for adoption. She added it could take the form of either a policy or part of the
Code of Ordinances.

Commissioner Deits asked if such action would need to precede Planning Commission
deliberations.

Principal Planner Oranchak answered such action would take place after Planning Commission
deliberations but prior to a development project. She suggested it may take place in conjunction
with a plat review.

Commissioner Deits expressed support for infill development in the western portion of the
Township. He asked the developer why he was planning for such large lots.

Mr. Fairmont responded the Master Plan designates the site in the residential 0.5-1.25 dwelling
units per acre category, there is an abundance of small lots in the Township and many individuals
are requesting a larger lot. He added the community drain field requires suitable soils to handle
the drain field, and this property has the cleanest, finest sand in the northeast section of the parcel,
which is where the drain field would be located. Mr. Fairmont added the applicant’s engineers
stated there should be less than 10,000 gallons per day going through a community drain field and,
assuming an average of 300 gallons per residence for the 25 lots, the amount used would total
7,500 gallons per day, 25% less than the maximum desired. Although not part of the rezoning
request, he offered it is the applicant’s intent to bring public water, gas and electric to the site as
well as have a discussion with the ICRD regarding the paving of Powell Road up to the entrance.



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT-
August 24, 2015
Page 4

Commissioner Jackson believed it a reasonable request to go from RR to RAA zoning and is an
efficient and effective use of the land.

Commissioner lanni clarified the applicant is seeking RAA zoning, not RAAA.

Chair Scott-Craig noted the Planning Commission has discussed an Urban Services Management
Area (USMA) and the edge of it runs down Powell Road, so properties along the west side are
within the USMA while properties on the east side of the road are not. He believed it will be a
long time before the school land will be utilized, and is not an argument in favor of the
development.

Mr. Fairmont understood the Chair’s comment relative to the land owned by the school, which is
why the applicant asked Okemos Public Schools if it was interested in selling, but administration
indicated it wanted to keep the land

Chair Scott-Craig asked the applicant to clarify whether there were 22 or 25 proposed lots as
depicted on the map included in the packet.

Mr. Fairmont determined three (3) of the lots were not numbered on the map.

Chair Scott-Craig inquired why the applicant was not leaving the northern end of the driving range
as part of the driving range.

Mr. Fairmont explained the driving range fence stops 150 feet south of the shared property line.

Chair Scott-Craig asked how many feet from the back of the lots to Grand River Avenue. He
suggested the possibility of a fence to prevent children from wandering onto the driving range.

Chair Scott-Craig noted the wetland map contained in the packet shows the community drain field
as part of the wetlands.

Mr. Fairmont responded the proposed community drain field is not part of the wetland. He offered
to provide the Planning Commission with a interpretation of the soils provided by the Township’s
Chief Engineer before the next meeting.

Chair Scott-Craig stated with only 25 lots proposed, a certain amount of greenspace will be
maintained. He inquired if there was a way to guarantee in perpetuity the greenspace would not
later be developed.

Principal Planner Oranchak replied the Township will need to wait until the developer submits the
plat application to determine how it will be subdivided and how the open spaces are defined.

Mr. Fairmont added a planned unit development isn’t a good fit for this land, as it requires 50% of
the upland to be reserved, resulting in the 25 homes being clustered on the remaining 50% of the
upland thereby eliminating the goal of larger lots. He stated the applicant intends to have a fully
functioning homeowners association which will maintain the public drain field and the common
open spaces.

Commissioner Deits asked if it is staff’s intent to include in the recommendation to the Board a
condition of no more than 25 lots.



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT-
August 24, 2015
Page 5

Principal Planner Oranchak responded it is not necessary for the Planning Commission to
condition the recommendation as the applicant has proposed 25 lots as part of the rezoning
application. She noted by recommending approval of the rezoning, the Planning Commission is
accepting the applicant’s offer with the condition.

Commissioner Van Coevering inquired if SpB on the soils map means good soil as it has no.
limitations. She inquired as to who prepared the soils map.

Principal Planner Oranchak replied it is based on a soil survey of Ingham County.

Commissioner Jackson noted there appears to be a conflict of information between the soils map
and the wetland map.

Principal Planner Oranchak reiterated the wetland map is a guide based on aerial photographs and
other natural resource maps and is not based on an actual on-site evaluation. She stated there may
not be wetlands on the site.

Commissioner Cordill inquired if the county soils map was more definitive than the wetland map.

Principal Planner Oranchak responded that question will be answered when an official wetland
delineation is available to evaluate.

Commissioner Cordill believed the number of homes which can be built will be determined when
the plat is laid out, as that number may be limited due to wetlands once delineated.

Principal Planner Oranchak indicated when the plat and the wetland delineation come to the
Township, the limitations will be visible.

Commissioner Cordill inquired why the applicant wouldn’t just place one lot per acre on the
already zoned RR property.

Principal Planner Oranchak added the applicant is stating there are limitations on the parcel which
would not allow them to obtain one lot per acre. She pointed to the traffic study which estimated
the site’s buildable area would result in 17 RR zoned lots, and the rezoning to RAA would allow
* for an additional eight (8) lots.

Chair Scott-Craig asked if the applicant was committing to the entire cost of paving Powell Road
from Grand River Avenue up to the subdivision entrance.

Mr. Fairmont replied if the ICRD agrees that Powell Road can be paved up to the entrance, the
applicant wants to pave Powell from Grand River up to the entrance of the subdivision.

Chair Scott-Craig asked if the applicant would be willing to pave beyond the entrance to create
pavement for the two properties to the north.

Mr. Fairmont replied that during internal discussions, paving of the two lots to the north was
considered as a marketing tool. He indicated the existing neighbors who have rejected previous
attempts to pave Powell Road should not bear the burden of this paving.

Chair Scott-Craig added the Daniels Drain pipe under Grand River Avenue has collapsed. He
noted if the ICDC replaces that pipe, the result could be considerably more water coming north on
that drain line and onto the applicant’s property.



Planning Commission Regular Meetmg Minutes -DRAFT-
August 24, 2015
Page 6

Mr. Fairmont added the main drain which is 10-15 feet deep and has a trickle of water. The ICDC
will give approval for a Daniels Drain crossing if it is properly engineered and built.

Chair Scott-Craig closed the public hearing at 7:57 P.M.
C. Rezoning #15050 (Stockwell Development Group), request to rezone two parcels totaling

approximately nine acres located on the northwest corner of Grand River Avenue and Powell
Road from PO (Professional and Office) to C-3 (Commercial)

Chair Scott-Craig opened the public hearing at 7:57 P.M.

e Summary of subject matter
Principal Planner Oranchak summarized the proposed rezonmg request as outlined in staff
memorandum dated August 20, 2015.

e Applicant
Ken Stockwell, Stockwell Development Group, 4277 Okemos Road, Okemos, believed this area
is not marketable as PO and is requesting a rezoning to C-3 (commercial). He reiterated the
applicant is strictly seeking a rezoning at this time. Mr. Stockwell added there are not many
parcels left near the mall which can be developed. He noted with the wetland acreage, there is
approximately seven (7) acres of developable land.

Amanda Hopper, 5485 Martinique Circle, East Lansing, offered her background and
qualifications as a developer. She expressed concern with the timing relative to Township
processes. She believed a restaurant would be a good use of this property.

e Public
Cindy Liu, 1575 Maiden Lane, Okemos, expressed support for development of this land, but
questioned whether the applicant would developed near Grand River Avenue, or set the
development back on the property. She believed nearby residents desire to keep the quiet feeling
of the area.

Planning Commission discussion:
Commissioner lanni asked how long the property has been zoned PO.

Principal Planner Oranchak responded that she does not have an exact date, but it has been a long
time.

Commissioner lanni inquired if the land has been undeveloped the entire time it has been zoned
PO.

Principal Planner Oranchak replied there is a building on the site previously used for office
purposes more than a decade ago.

Commissioner Deits inquired if C-3 zoning is confined to the immediate environs of the Meridian
Mall.

Principal Planner Oranchak responded in the affirmative, appropriate for larger uses primarily in
the commercial core area designated on the Master Plan map.

Commissioner Deits noted he will not support rezoning to C-3 as it is not in a commercial core
area and is intended for local clientele. He stated he would be more comfortable with a lower
zoning designation.



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT-
August 24, 2015
Page 7

Commissioner Ianni asked the applicant if she would have a problem with a C-2 zoning
designation.

Ms. Hopper indicated she had no problem with a C-2 zoning designation.

Commissioner Jackson spoke in support of Commissioner Deits’ position on C-3, indicating
C-2 is a more appropriate zoning designation as there is adjacent C-2 zoned property. She
emphasized Mr. Stockwell’s earlier statement expressing flexibility with the rezoning request.

Chair Scott-Craig noted the C-3 district requires a 250 foot setback from neighboring residential,
whereas C-2 is a 100 foot setback (and less if properly screened). He asked staff about the
administrative procedure for the zoning designation to be changed. :

Principal Planner Oranchak responded that either the applicant can make the change or the
Planning Commission can make the recommendation of C-2 zoning to the Board.

Commissioner Cordill commented on the applicant’s earlier statement regarding the possibilities
of something similar to Dusty’s or a drive-through, indicating they are not the same while
acknowledging the Planning Commission is only dealing with the rezoning this evening.

Commissioner Deits added the issue of a drive-through window for a coffee shop on Grand River
Avenue further to the east was taken up two (2) years ago and denied by the Commission. He
offered his preference for the development to be low impact, given the fact it is on the eastern edge
of the Township.

Chair Scott-Craig stated he visited the neighboring land to the west and the land in the back corner
drops significantly. He observed a large detention pond on land immediately north of the Sparrow
Building owned by the ICDC, noting wetland determination will be an important part of any
development. Chair Scott-Craig indicated the vacant office building is a hazard and should be
quickly razed.

Chair Scott-Craig closed the public hearing at 8:21 P.M.

D. Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #15034 (Meridian Investment Group), request to
redevelop 4970 to 5030 Northwind Drive by replacing five office buildings with one mixed use
building and three apartment buildings and

E. Special Use Permit #15121 (Meridian Investment Group), request for a group of buildings greater
than 25,000 square feet in gross floor area at 4970 to 5030 Northwind Drive

Chair Scott-Craig opened the public hearing at 8:21 P.M.

e  Summary of subject matter
Associate Planner Wyatt summarized the mixed use planned unit development (MUPUD)
and the special use permits outlined in staff memorandums dated August 21, 2015.

e Applicant
Ron Calhoun, 1427 W. Saginaw, East Lansing, representing Meridian Investment Group, LLC,
stated the requested variances are for conditions which currently exist on the site (e.g., no curb
and gutter, existing storm system) as they are trying to work within the existing footprints of the
buildings. He noted the pervious area has been increased by 18%, from 23.3% to 27.49%.



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT-
August 24, 2015
Page &

. Mr. Calhoun believed one of the key elements was removing the building in the front and placing
the public park with seating in front along Grand River to open up the development. He indicated

that change “forced” the mixed use building to become larger and retain the three (3) buildings in
the back of the property. Mr. Calhoun noted there is a lot of hard surface on the site which is
open space but cannot be counted toward the impervious/pervious surface ratio for this
redevelopment project.

Mr. Calhoun explained the articulations of the elevations are no more than 50 feet. He showed
the different textures of the material proposed to be used on the buildings.

Planning Commission discussion:

Commissioner Tenaglia expressed appreciation for the redesign and opening it up along Grand
River Avenue.

Commissioner Ianni spoke to the slight variance in parking spaces and addressed the existing bus
stop on the north end of the property. He asked if the applicant anticipated a number of residents
using public transit or alternate forms of transportation.

Mr. Calhoun responded it is the trend of the day and the applicant has met that trend by providing
305 bicycle parking spaces and acknowledged the proposed upgrade to the public transit system on

Grand River Avenue. He stated they chose the option to decrease parking and increase grassy area
for balance.

Commissioner Van Coevering requested an explanation of a waiver v. variance.

Principal Planner Oranchak replied if the applicant requests a waiver which is granted they do not
need a variance.

Commission Cordill expressed appreciation for the concept. She asked if pavers were part of the
area for the park.

Mr. Calhoun responded they are concrete pavers with a pattern.

Commissioner Cordill inquired if the pavers could be made of material which would allow water
to go through them.

Mr. Calhoun responded it would not count towards the impervious/pervious calculation.
Commissioner Cordill inquired if Buildings 2, 3, and 4 are twin buildings with their backs to one
another. She expressed concern that they create a cavern of shadows and wondered if there was a
purpose in that specific design.

Mr. Calhoun responded access always has to be provided for apartment projects and if it is
enclosed, then hallways have to be included. He believed the open area between buildings
provides internal ventilation and the bedrooms are laid out around the perimeter of the buildings.
Commissioner Cordill inquired as to the width of the open area between the buildings.

Mr. Calhoun replied it is 12 feet.

Commissioner Cordill asked if the stairs are entirely covered.

Mr. Calhoun responded they are covered.



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT-
August 24, 2015
Page 9

Commissioner Deits posed the question whether the Planning Commission should consider there
are so many projects coming before it where the mixed use “tail” wags the multi-family housing
“dog.” He believed this development is 10% commercial in the front, with 90% multi-family
residential in the back. While acknowledging the development cannot be denied on that basis
under our current ordinance, Commissioner Deits suggested looking at the character of the
development in that context. He asked the applicant if all of the buildings were being constructed
on the existing foundations.

Mr. Calhoun replied the existing buildings will be torn down and the foundations torn out, but will
utilize the existing footprints.

Commissioner Deits voiced the desire of the Planning Commission as a whole to move the
buildings closer to Grand River and suggested moving the mixed use building closer to the park
with less parking in front of it along Grand River.

Commissioner Deits requested staff provide information for the next meeting on the required and
reduced parking approved by the Board for the project titled The Avenue. He believed if the
Planning Commission has flexibility where parking is concerned, he would like to reduce the
amount of vehicle parking spaces and see an increase in the amount of covered bicycle parking.

Commissioner Deits asked if there is a west to east exit onto the adjacent property in the northeast
corner of the site.

Mr. Calhoun responded there is connectivity between the subject site and the adjacent property to
enhance circulation through the entire area.

Commissioner Deits did not believe there was a need for car circulation, but one of pedestrian
circulation, voicing his preference for a pathway to “force” pedestrian activity.

Commissioner Deits inquired as to the zoning designation for the property to the west.

Associate Planner Wyatt responded the property is in East Lansing and she was unsure at this
point of time.

Commissioner Deits requested staff provide the zoning designation at the next meeting where this
project is discussed.

Chair Scott-Craig stated he believed it was office.

Commissioner Deits inquired if there was a continuous sidewalk planned at the south end of the
property which would circumnavigate the project.

Mr. Calhoun replied in the affirmative, showing a sidewalk connection from the property line up
to the sidewalk on Grand River Avenue with internal sidewalks which connect to existing

shopping.

Commissioner Tenaglia believed bringing the building up to Grand River creates a blind corner.
She stated the subject site is not a good place for office as there is no visibility along Grand River.

Commissioner Ianni voiced appreciation that the trees are screening the off street parking along
Grand River Avenue. ‘



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT-
August 24, 2015
Page 10

Commissioner Deits inquired if the northeast exit was strategically placed to provide six (6)
parking spaces needed to meet the parking requirement. He suggested if not needed, it would be
nice to have more landscaping in that spot.

Commissioner Van Coevering questioned whether the access to the east makes a connection
through to Northwind Drive.

Mr. Calhoun showed how a vehicle could traverse through the area.

Commissioner Van Coevering voiced support for that connection as the Township advocates for
service drives and it prevents some vehicular traffic from traveling back onto Grand River Avenue
to reach the shopping area.

Chair Scott-Craig pointed out there is another access drive behind the existing shopping center.
Commissioner Jackson stated she did not see access over to the other end of Northwind Drive.
Mr. Calhoun replied it is not a drive, but traverses through the parking lot.

Commissioner lanni suggested the number of parking spaces can be reduced if the Planning
Commission looks at the number of parking spaces needed as calculated by the developer v. the
number of parking spaces per Township ordinance.

Mr. Calhoun believed the applicant is close to the number of parking spaces needed in order for
the businesses to be successful.

Commissioner Deits suggested parking on either side of the recycling center, ten spots
immediately to the south, leaving them landscaped for now, but allow the applicant the ability to
use for parking if the demand required it. Trend is for less parking.

Commissioner Jackson suggested consideration of the removal of parking spaces in some places
could alleviate setback issues.

Chair Scott-Craig asked for clarification of information in the staff report which stated a 100 year
floodplain determination is not required.

Associate Planner Wyatt responded there is no requirement to provide stormwater detention for a
100 rain event on the site.

Chair Scott-Craig indicated that since this project is next to the river, stormwater is important. He
suggested placement of curb and gutter with appropriate gaps to force the water to flow into the
greenspace area. »

Chair Scott-Craig indicated 2900 Place (across the street) has its own two-deck parking lot and has
an informal agreement with the current property owner to provide parking.

Mr. Calhoun indicated he was not aware of the agreement.

Chair Scott-Craig expressed appreciation for the letter provided by the applicant from the ICRD,
but would also like the Michigan Department of Transportation and the ICDC to offer comments.



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT-
August 24, 2015
Page 11

Mr. Calhoun responded that letters have been sent, but he has not yet received a response. He
stated he began his dialogue with the ICDC in April, but it is his intent to use the existing storm
system.

Chair Scott-Craig addressed the traffic study report, which indicated the area has a designation of
F and the additional traffic would lower that rating. He asked the dates when traffic counts were
taken.

Mr. Calhoun responded in late May or early June.

Chair Scott-Craig replied there is a real problem with traffic study accuracy as MSU held final
exams the first week of May and then left the area. He stated the project will create more traffic in
an already congested area and must be dealt with in some fashion.

Mr. Calhoun offered that he had a discussion with the traffic engineer which resulted in
eliminating over half of the six (6) existing access points from the site to Northwind Drive in an
effort to “push” vehicles over to the traffic light. He addressed the need for the signal to be
modified to address additional traffic, some of which will be created by Whole Foods.

While acknowledging there is access in front of the site to bus service in one direction, Chair
Scott-Craig expressed concern that pedestrians must cross five (5) lanes of traffic on Grand River
to have access to bus service in the opposite direction. He suggested consideration be given to
providing a shuttle service to campus which would help address this safety issue. Chair Scott-
Craig reiterated his problem with all the additional traffic being created.

Chair Scott-Craig inquired of Mr. Calhoun as to who owns the private portion of Northwind Drive.
Mr. Calhoun believed it was the same developer as 2900 Place, the Eyde Company.

Chair Scott-Craig offered a partial solution to the traffic issue in making that portion of Northwind
one-way after the commercial portion.

Chair Scott-Craig addressed Planning Commission desire for setbacks as they are green. While
appreciative of the developer’s concept of staying within the footprint of the buildings, he stated
the applicant could make alterations to the design of the site so that such significant
variances/waivers are not necessary since the site is being cleared. Chair Scott-Craig objected to a
variance request from 15 feet to zero feet.

Mr. Calhoun responded the zero foot setback is a preexisting condition, and the developer is
opening up the front from the setback currently in place. He did not believe they were
exacerbating the existing condition relative to setbacks.

Chair Scott-Craig recogized the applicant was reducing the imperviousness of the site by a small
amount, but reiterated that one of the “tradeoffs” for increased density is extraordinary amenities.
He stated there is Planning Commission desire for more greenspace than the bare minimum.

Chair Scott-Craig stated LED lighting is not really an amenity and should no longer be listed
among the amenities within our ordinance. He requested the applicant come back with a list of
extraordinary amenities not just for the residents, but the public as well. Chair Scott-Craig
reminded Mr. Calhoun four (4) extraordinary amenities must be provided in order to receive the
density bonus.



Lo oy

Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT-
August 24, 2015
Page 12

Commissioner Tenaglia expressed appreciation for comments by the previous speaker, but was
concerned with all the problems being expressed now when the applicant had come before the
Planning Commission earlier in the year for feedback.

Chair Scott-Craig explained the concept plan does not have the detail that is now available in the
proposed MUPUD.

Commissioner Van Coevering asked if the Township wasn’t creating some of the
pervious/impervious surface problems with the amount of required parking. She believed the
Township was self-creating some of the impervious surface. Commissioner Van Coevering
suggested consideration be given relative to some of the setback requirements for this infill
redevelopment project, stating waivers are appropriate in these circumstances. She stressed that
LED lighting is considered an amenity in our ordinance, and the Planning Commission is
constrained by the Township’s ordinances.

Commissioner Jackson agreed with Chair Scott-Craig that the applicant’s interpretation of
redevelopment as placing something new on a site exactly under the conditions of the old layout
was not necessarily correct.  She stressed that Planning Commission consideration of
redevelopment deals more with reuse of an existing building rather than reuse of land.

Commissioner Jackson noted an earlier comment by the applicant that he likes to use pavers in the
public park, but it does not count toward less impervious space. She questioned why that
mattered, and if it makes sense to the developer to do that, it could be offered as an extraordinary
amenity.

Commissioner Jackson asked how the units were marketed.

Mr. Calhoun noted each bedroom has its own bathroom, but each bedroom was not being
marketed as one unit.

Commissioner Jackson asked for an explanation of Storz relative to an upgrade of the fire
hydrants.

Associate Planner Wyatt replied it is her understanding Storz is a quick connect hose coupling for
fire hoses to attach to fire hydrants and an upgrade to meet current Fire Department standards.

Commissioner Jackson believed there is a greater expectation in proposed redevelopment to meet
the current standard to the extent possible without relying upon the fact a waiver or variance can
be requested.

Commissioner Cordill reminded fellow Commissioners that relative to the parking, the number of
units being requested is what is driving the number of spaces required.

Commissioner Ianni inquired if the bus stop on the north end of the property services MSU
campus.

Mr. Calhoun responded it is part of the CATA bus system.

Commissioner Ianni asked where the nearest crosswalk was located in the event someone wanted
to take the bus west to East Lansing.

Mr. Calhoun believed it would be traffic light on Northwind Drive to the east and Hagadorn Road
to the west, approximately 1,000 feet in each direction.



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT-
August 24, 2015
Page 13

Commissioner Deits reminded Planning Commissioners redevelopment adds to the economics of
the Township and this development will become a viable economic unit where there is none now.
He stated that is one reason why the Planning Commission provides flexibility. Under the
MUPUD ordinance, he stated the Planning Commission does not necessarily need to follow the
Township’s parking requirements. He indicated the world of parking is changing rapidly and 1970
parking standards do not necessarily apply today.

Chair Scott-Craig closed the public hearing at 9:38 P.M.
7. Unfinished Business (None)
8. Other Business (None)
9. Township Board, Planning Commission officer, committee chair, and staff comment or reports
Chair Scott-Craig expressed appreciation to Commissioner Deits for representing the Planning

Commission at the Board meeting where the appeal of the cell tower was discussed.

A.  Future Projects/New Applications

i.  SUP #15-14051 (Department of Parks & Recreation), request to impact the 100-year
floodplain associated with replacing the Wonch Park Pavilion and portions of the internal
sidewalk at 4555 Okemos Road, Okemos.

B. Update of Ongoing Projects

i. Site Plans Received — NONE
ii.  Site Plans Approved - NONE

10. Public remarks
Chair Scott-Craig opened and closed public remarks.

14. Adjournment
Chair Scott-Craig adjourned the regular meeting at 9:41 P.M.

Respectfully Submitted,

Sandra K. Otto
Recording Secretary



Rezoning #00150
(St. King)

September 10, 2015

APPLICANT:

STATUS OF APPLICANT:

LOCATION:

REQUEST:

CURRENT ZONING:

AREA OF SUBJECT SITE:

EXISTING LAND USE:

AREA LAND USES:

CURRENT ZONING IN AREA:

FUTURE LAND USE MAP
DESIGNATION:

FUTURE LAND USE MAP:

Judith St. King
5180 Madison Avenue B-2
Okemos, Ml 48864

Owner

4660 Marsh Road, Okemos in Section 21 of the Township.

Rezone to PO (Professional and Office)

RC (Multiple Family-Medium Density)

Approximately 1.18 acres

Health Clinic

North: Vacant (across Marsh Road)

South: Residential dwellings and an eye clinic
East:. Condominiums and church

West: Duplex and vacant (across Marsh Road)

North: C-2 (Commercial)

South: RC (Multiple Family-Medium Density)

East: RC (Multiple Family-Medium Density)

West: C-2 (Commercial) and RC (Multiple Family-Medium
Density)

Residential 5.0 to 8.0 dwelling units per acre

North: Commercial

South: Residential 5.0 to 8.0 dwelling units per acre
East. Residential 5.0 to 8.0 dwelling units per acre
West: Commercial '




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

MEMORANDUM

TO: Planning Co ission

FROM:

Richérd F. B‘rown Jr ICP/
Assocnate Planner

DATE: September 10, 2015

RE: Rezoning #00150 (St. King), request to rezone 4660 March Road from RC
(Multiple Family-Medium Density) to PO (Professional and Office).

In 2000, Judith St. King requested a rezoning of approximately 1.18 acres of land, located on
the eastside of Marsh Road, south of Grand River Avenue and north of Hamilton Road, in Section
21 of the Township. The public hearing was held on November 13, 2000 and subsequently on
November 27, 2000 the Planning Commission voted to table the request without making a
recommendation to the Township Board. The applicant is requesting the case be taken off the
table and a recommendation be forwarded to the Board.

The subject site is currently occupied by an approximate 4,772 square foot structure used as a
clinic. The original structure was constructed as a residence in 1941 and remodeled into a
clinic, as non-residential use permitted by special use permit in a residential district in 1993
(SUP #92141). A 1,254 square foot former home, which is now used for storage, is also on the
site. ,

AERIAL MAP




Rezoning #00150 (St. King)
Planning Commission (9/10/15)
Page 2

2005 Master Plan

The 2005 Master Plan’s Future Land Use Map designates the subject site in the Residential 3.5
to 8.0 dwelling units per acre category.

FUTURE LAND USE MAP

° .//o ° .?}é{g%é/ /é y l[_,/ ®
4&!; ° -/f%\gy 7 § 2\ 2 0\&‘—‘
Ny =V - 7 N
\7 ARG / 4 .(é’
=9 2 // 7R e e p ‘
, e é;:agz // e v /,fQ <§ e o 0 —74
iR &/ i 7 e e P «
/// A a 5 a e ‘
e o o Ll
e o 9 T—
L ‘
e o o t
\t.'y: e o o [|1
e o 9 .
78T o o o [l
o
P ? e o L [
:zjh =l
’7 Vi Legend
j / // | ] RESIDENTIAL 1.25-3.5 DU/A
Wi + + 4 RESIDENTIAL 3.5-5.0 DU/A ;;7
AU o |
\c?\\\ : [T 1] RESIDENTIAL 5.0-8.0 DU/A :
isss [——] RESIDENTIAL 8.0-14.0 DUIAl'
:' [TITT] coMMERCIAL i
L
o D:DCOMMERCMLCOREAREA. .
HEPT X
N ,/,;/ AR oFFICE
7 PARK A\ ‘
% INSTITUTIONAL ;j '
7 ¢ R o ¢ 0B ole s~

Zoning

The 1.18 acre subject site is currently zoned RC (Multiple-Family, 14 units per acre) and
contains approximately 169-feet of frontage on Marsh Road. The subject site conforms to the
minimum area and lot width requirements of both the RC (Multiple Family-Medium Density) and
the PO (Professional and Office) zoning districts. The districts require a minimum lot frontage of
50 feet in PO and 100 feet in RC and a minimum lot area of 5,000 square feet in PO and 11,000
square feet in RC.



Rezoning #00150 (St. King)
Planning Commission (9/10/15)

Page 3
ZONING MAP
A A
c-3 </ PO
2N -
//I’ o)
Y L
57
M?/q’/ RK —
o7
/\:7\\\\
IS - o B
o 8o D
1 _
Ta_m“gﬂ?i ] RS — \/‘\M
| " T|ra b\ \
[ AN \ [
Jﬁﬂ—’"— - \\ \\ \ //\/’
R \ P s =
\ // \\ \ \///\/’ /(///\\/ —r
‘.\‘7,’—(\ A “ \\ BM T ,/’/\/ \\\ \\ \
% ’//\//Y\\ \ Yo )’VL
AN N

Physical Features

The subject site contains an approximate 4,772 square foot clinic and 1,254 square foot storage
building (former second residence), along with associated parking and site landscaping. The
property gently slopes from a high elevation of 865-feet above mean sea level in the northeast
portion of the site to a low of 859-feet above mean sea level in the southwest. There are no
wetlands or floodplains located on the subject site. In addition, no features associated with the
Greenspace Plan are depicted on or near the subject site.

Public Utilities

Public water and sanitary sewer are available to serve the subject site.

Streets and Traffic

The subject site contains approximately 169 feet of frontage along Marsh Road, which is
composed of a four-lane paved roadway and a center turn lane, with concrete curb and gutter
and a seven foot pedestrian/bicycle pathway. Marsh Road is classified as a principal arterial
road.

According to the 8" Edition of the Trip Generation Manual, a Clinic, which is permitted by
special use permit in a residential district, produces an average of 5.18 trip ends per 1,000
square feet of gross floor area during the PM peak hour and a total of 31.45 trip ends on the
average weekday. Based on the 4,772 facility, this equates to 25 trip ends during the PM leak
hour and 150 trip ends on the average weekday over a 24-hour period.



Rezoning #00150 (St. King)
Planning Commission (9/10/15)
Page 4

By comparison, a similar sized Medical-Dental Office Building, which is permitted by right in the
PO (Professional and Office) zoning district, would produce approximately 17 trip ends during
the PM peak hour (3.56 per 1,000 square feet) and 172 trip ends over a weekday 24-hour
period (36.19 per 1,000 square feet).

A traffic report is not warranted due to the minimal difference in estimated peak hour and daily
trip ends between clinics and office uses.

Staff Analysis

Judith St. King’s request to rezone the subject site to PO (Professional and Office) was first
heard by the Planning Commission on November 13, 2000. The case was then tabled by the
Commission on November 27, 2000. Staff memorandum and minutes from those meetings are
attached for review.

When evaluating the rezoning request, the Planning Commission should consider all uses
permitted by right and by special use permit in both the current and proposed zoning districts as
well as topics listed on the rezoning application such as changing conditions in the vicinity of the
site; consistency with the 2005 Master Plan; furtherance of health, safety and welfare;
compatibility with surrounding uses; potential adverse impacts to the environment; identified
community need; logical and orderly development pattern; and/or better/more efficient use of land.

Existing land uses along the southeast side of Marsh Road, to the northeast of Hamilton Road,
consist of an eye clinic (a non-residential use permitted by Special Use Permit #03021), a
duplex, the subject site (a non-residential use permitted by Special Use Permit #92141 and 97-
92141), and a church (a non-residential use permitted by Special Use Permit #02021). Further
northeast along Marsh Road, the properties are zoned PO (Professional and Office) and
Commercial. On the north side of Marsh Road, the properties are zoned Commercial and
currently consist of vacant land and Meijer.

While the proposed rezoning of 4660 Marsh Road does not conform to the 2005 Master Plan’s
Future Land Use Map, the request is consistent with the Plan’s third goal and associated
objectives “to maintain the viability of existing Township businesses.”

The subject site has gone through two past Special Use Permit reviews. The first occurred in
1992, which granted a Special Use Permit for a non-residential use in a residential district, so
the then vacant residence could be converted into a clinic. In 1997, a modification to the permit
was approved which allowed for an addition to the facility. As an existing and approved non-
residential use in a residential district, the clinic complies with each of the site location standards
of Section 86-654(e), as well as the site development standards of Section 86-654(f)(2).

Planning Commission Options

The Planning Commission has the option to recommend approval or denial of the proposed
rezoning. A motions will be provided for consideration at a future meeting.

Attachments
1. Application materials
2. Staff memorandum from 2000

3. Planning Commission minutes from 2000




Rezoning #00150 (St. King)
Planning Commission (9/10/15)
Page 5

Planning Commission Options

The Planning Commission has the option to recommend approval or denial of the proposed
rezoning. A motions will be provided for consideration at a future meeting.

Attachments

1. Application materials -

2. Staff memorandum from 2000

3. Planning Commission minutes from 2000
4, Communications from 2000



~ Judith St. King, LMSW, Ph.D.

Wm. K. Miller, Ph.D.

4660 Marsh Road
Okemos, MI 48864

Meridian Township Planning Commission
Administrative Building

5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, MI 48864

Fuly 21,2015
To the Meridian Township Planning Commission,

We, Dr. William K. Miller and Dr. Judith St. King, request that the Planning Commission take
action on rezoning case # 00150. Please take this item off the table and begin a public hearing.
At the time of the original rezoning request this case was tabled to wait on an updated Master

Plan.

We would very much appreciate being placed on the agenda for the last meeting in August or the
first Planning Commission meeting in September, 2015.

Thank you in advance.

[ DAL oer

. K. Mill D. ; 5
Wm K Mi f:r, Ph é/%/
%’%M 7

Judith St. King, LMSW, Ph.D.



Official Use Only:

A. Rezoning No. ‘ Date Received
Project Name Received by
Total Acres Action/Date

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
PLANNING DIVISION
5151 MARSH ROAD
OKEMOS, MiI 48864
(517) 348-1200

REZONING APPLICATION

B. Applicant/Owner TJudith sELna

Address of applicant YLLl S Efpn e g/gﬁg{
Vi ('(Jﬁfﬂ CAW MLE 285 ¢
Telephone (Woark) (&7 ) 3492 -¢6evs” k& 1/
Telephone (Home) : 44 3¢F—C (SR
ta¥
Cs Architect, Engineer or Planner responsible for request if different from applicant:
Name
Address
Telephone

Contact Person

D. Site address/location YO Mans 4 /%"cé Lfcom s Pz
- Legal description (attach if necessary) -

E. Current zoning _ Ml reesidendsn/ [(sep —clinic } (/34)
Requested zoning olPlice Grolessivnal (PO '
Reason why rezoning should be granted (attach if necessary) /

Aftns ke

F. Is rezoning consistent with Comprehensive Plan? Al e T8 o Kadd — % (ls

Y were St £9-67- 00

S@éture of Applicant J at/ %
Fee: ?i{éo Q.00 Received by/Date: / /7 = Z/ZAD '




Rezoning Application:
Erxror in the Ordinance: N/A
Consistency with this Ordinance: Not conflictual.

Consistency with the Comprehensive Development Plan: The rezoning of this site is
consistent with the Comprehensive Development Plan. The Comprehensive Development Plan
indicates the importance of mixed use activity districts, one of these being the Meridian Center.
Our site, located on the east side of Marsh Road and near Hamilton is adjoining this district. The
Future Land Use Map proposes to “integrate office and residential uses in a cohesive mixed use
district. The organization of uses is based on a transitional land use planning concept, whereby
the intensive commercial core is buffered from outlying single-family neighborhoods by a series of
progressively less-inténsive land uses. For example, the office uses proposed east of the
commercial core serve as a buffer for the adjoining moderate density residential development (3.5
- 8.0 units per acre), This moderate density residential development in turn serves as a buffer
between the office nuses and the single family development farther east.”

Our proposed rezoning will begin the transition into the commercial core and is consistent with
the land use for the property south of our site that is proposed to be commercially zoned.

Compatibility with the Surrounding Uses: Currently the site is operated under a special use
permit allowing it to be utilized as a health clinic. This site would continue to operate primarily as
a health clinic, however it is being underutilized at this time and rezoning will allow more effective
use of the building.

The land located on the west side of Marsh Road is zoned commercial and according to
Mr, Kieselbach, there has been increased interest in development of this space. The land to the
east is zoned multiple residential. Two lots on Marsh Road and three lots along Hamilton are
projected to be rezoned commercial according to the Comprehensive Development Plan. The
church property on Marsh Road is not likely to have a change in rezoning. The rezoning of our
location would create an ideal buffer between areas and is in keeping with the increasing
commercial tenor of the Hamilton Road and Marssh area intersection.

Changing Conditions: The new round about at Marsh Road and Hamilton Road has changed
the traffic patterns. Traffic is concentrated and continuous, making the area more favorable
toward a business climate than for residential. The property at Marsh Road is less than fifty yards
from the round about.

Effect on Natural Environment: The change in zoning does not affect any further change to the
environment as this property currently has a special use permit for office clinic. Therefore there
would be no change in the natural functioning of the environment from the existing conditions.

Effect on Public Services & Infrastructure: Because this site has been used as a clinic for the
last five years, there would be no further change.



Community Need: The site will continue to be utilized in the same capacity and provide space
for other professionals. At this time we have had requests to rent to graphic designers, attorneys,
and office temp agencies. In addition, our commercial Realtor (Stockwell) has received numerous
requests to rent our lower level office suite for professional office space. All of these requests had
had to be denied due to our current restrictive zoning. Some of these businesses have had
difficulty locating elsewhere for a comparable location and quality, indicating a community need
at this particular location,

Development Patterns: Due to the changmg conditions of this area, the rezoning is a logical
change for this site.



Rezoning #00150
(St. King)
November 9, 2000

APPLICANTS:

CURRENT ZONING:
PROPOSED ZONING:

LOCATION:

AREA OF SUBJECT SITE:

EXISTING LAND USE:

AREA LAND USES:
North:

South:

East:

West:

AREA ZONING:

North:

South:

East:

West:

Judith St. King

4441 Elmwood Drive

Okemos, Ml 48864

RC (Multiple Family-Medium Density)

PO (Professional Office)

4660 Marsh Road, Okemos, eastside of Marsh Road,
south of Grand River Avenue and north of Hamilton
Road, in Section 21 of the Township.

Approximately 1.18 acres

Health Clinic: Women’s Personal Growth and Therapy
Center

Retail/Commercial
Residential dwellings
Condominiums and church

Duplex

CS (Community Service)

RB (Single Family-High Density) & PO (Professional
Office) ‘

RC (Multiple Family-Medium Density)

CS (Community Service)




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

MEMORANDUM

TO: Planning Commission

FROM: é/ﬁj

Richard F. Brown? Jr., AJCP
Associate Planner

DATE: November 9, 2000

RE: Rezoning #00150 (St. King), request to rezone approximately 1.18-acres on
the eastside of Marsh Road, south of Grand River Avenue and north of
Hamilton Road, in Section 21, from RC (Multiple Family-Medium Density) to
PO (Professional Office).

Judith St. King is requesting a rezoning of approximately 1.18 acres of land, located on the
eastside of Marsh Road, south of Grand River Avenue and north of Hamilton Road, in
Section 21 of the Township. The subject site is currently occupied by an approximate
4,772 square foot structure used as a clinic. The original structure was constructed as a

residence in 1941 and remodeled into a clinic in 1993.

The subject site has gone through two Special Use Permit reviews. The first occurred in
1992, which granted a Special Use Permit for a non-residential use in a residential district,
so the residence could be converted into a health clinic (Women’s Personal Growth and
Therapy Center). In 1997, a modification to the permit was approved which allowed for an

addition to the facility.
Comprehensive Development Plan

The 1993 Comprehensive Development Plan designates the subject site as Residential 3.5
to 8.0 dwelling units per acre. The requested rezoning to PO (Professional Office) is not
consistent with the 1993 Comprehensive Development Plan.

Properties surrounding the subject site are designated as follows:

North: Commercial Core

South: Residential 1.25 to 2.5 and Residential 3.0 to 8.0 dwelling units per
acre

East: Semi-Public (Church), Residential 1.25 to 2.5 and Residential 3.0 to

8.0 dwelling units per acre

West: Residential 1.25 to 2.5 dwelling units per acre



Rezoning #00150 (St. K. )
Planning Commission (11/9/00)
Page 2

S35 OCATION o
i -

NI B o
SRR | "
RS ) o

£y

»
3

o

Zoning

The 1.18 acre subject site is currently zoned RC (Multiple Family-Medium Density) and
contains approximately 169-feet of frontage on Marsh Road. The subject site conforms to
the minimum area and lot width requirements of both RC (Multiple Family-Medium Density)
and PO (Professional Office) zoning districts. The districts require a minimum lot frontage
of 50 feet in PO and 100 feet in RC and a minimum lot area of 5,000 square feet in PO

and 11,000 square feet in RC.

The current RC (Multiple Family-Medium Density) zoning allows a maximum of 14 dwelling
units per acre. Based on this number, approximately 16 dwelling units could be
constructed on the subject site under RC zoning.

Based on the calculations provided in the 1993 Comprehensive Development Plan, under
PO zoning approximately 16,164 square feet of office space could be developed on the
subject site (1.18 x 43,560/3.18). However, the subject site is oddly shaped and much of
its area is located within the 110-foot setback from the center of the Marsh Road right-of-
way or within the setbacks from adjacent residential zoning districts. Of the 1.18 acres,
the building envelope is only approximately 6,400 square feet.

Physical Features

The site gently slopes from a high elevation of 865-feet above mean sea level in the
northeast portion of the subject site to a low of 859-feet above mean sea level in the
southwest. There are no wetlands or floodplains located on the subject site.




Rezoning #00150 (St. Kiig)
Planning Commission (11/9/00)
Page 3

. Soils

The following predominant soil types impact the development of the subject site:

4505 B1;Marlette Fine Sandy Loam, 2 to 6 percent slopes: The Marlette series consists of
well drained soils formed in glacial till on moraines and till plains. There are no severe

limitations.

4505 C1; Marlette Fine Sandy Loam, 6 to 12 percent slopes: The Marlette series consists
of well drained soils formed in glacial till on moraines and till plains. There are no severe

limitations.

5

e
Public Utilities
Public water and sanitary sewer are available to serve the subject site.

Streets and Traffic

The subject site contains approximately 169 feet of frontage along Marsh Road, which is
composed of a four-lane paved roadway, with concrete curb and gutter and a 7-foot
pedestrian/bicycle pathway. The most recent traffic data for Marsh Road south of Grand
River Avenue, from the Ingham County Road Commission indicated an average of 13,356
cars per day utilizing Marsh Road south of Grand River Avenue in 1997.

Marsh Road is also classified as a minor arterial road in the 1993 Comprehensive
Development Plan.

Based on an estimated 16 multiple-family dwelling units, which could be constructed on
the subject site under the RC regulations, approximately 105 vehicle trip ends would be
produced on the average weekday (6.59 x 16). Based on a 6,400 square foot office
building figure, the number of potential trip ends is approximately 71 per weekday.



Rezoning #00150 (St. Kily)
Planning Commission (11/9/00)
Page 4

Staff Analysis

The proposed PO district requires a 50-foot setback from adjacent residential zoning
districts, whether single-family, duplex, or muitiple family. The existing RC zoning also
requires a 50-foot setback, but only from single family residential zoning. The subject site
is surrounded on all sides by commercial or multiple-family zoning. Non-residential uses are
located to the east (First Baptist Church) and north (Meijer's) of the subject site. PO
(Professional Office) zoning is located northeast of the church at 4740 Marsh Road.
Otherwise, the eastside of Marsh Road between Hamilton and Grand River is zoned
multiple-family residential, except at the corner of Marsh and Grand River.

As noted previously, the subject site conforms to the requirements of the PO (Professional
Office) district standards of the Code of Ordinances. While the proposed rezoning of 4660
Marsh Road does not conform to the 1993 Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map,
the request is consistent with the plan’s objective to maintain the viability of existing
Township businesses. The Planning Commission will need to determine whether placing
PO (Professional Office) zoning in this location is an appropriate and logical development
pattern or whether the special use permit for a non-residential use in a residential district is
sufficient to address the need of the applicant and the community. Differences between
these two options include:

e Larger minimum lot size requirements for the non-residential uses in residential districts.

e More descriptive appearance/residential compatibility requirements for non-residential
uses in residential districts.

e Larger minimum setbacks for uses in PO districts.

e Uses permitted by right as well as special use permit in the PO district, where non-
residential uses in residential districts are use specific and all require a special use
permit.

Under the PO (Professional Office) regulations the subject site could potentially be split.
However, the odd shape of the parcel would limit its development potential, due to

required setbacks.

Changes that have occurred in the vicinity of the subject site since the adoption of the
1993 Comprehensive Development Plan include the construction of the Marsh/Hamilton
round-a-bout, the new northbound right-turn lane on Okemos Road, the enlargement of the

Meridian Mall.
Planning Commission Options

The Planning Commission has the option to recommend approval or denial of the proposed
rezoning. Alternative motions will be provided at a future meeting.

Attachments
1. Applicant’s reason for the rezoning and map of the site
2, Letter from the Ingham County Road Commission, dated October 31, 2000



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes
November 13, 2000
Page 2

5. Communications

Rick Brown summarized the communications from:

A.
B.

C.

D.

Tom Cousino, regarding the importance of parks and ponds in the Township.
Responses from the Parks and Recreation Department Director and Staff
thanking Mr. Cousino for his letter.

Gould Investors, regarding easement streetscaping along the road as outlined in
the Grand River Corridor Plan.

Copy of the Special Use Permit approval letter from the St. King site.

Copies are available for review in the Department of Community Planning and
Development.

6. Announcements
None

7. Township Board, Planning Commission, committees, and staff comments and
reports

Mark Kieselbach reported at its November 9, 2000 meeting, the Township Board:

oDom>

T m

G.
H
l.

Granted final adoption on Rezoning #97210 (Okemos Dental)

Granted final adoption to Rezoning #00140 (Federau & Wallin)

Granted final adoption for Zoning Amendment #00050 (Planning Commission)
Introduced for subsequent adoption on Zoning Amendment #98150 (Planning
Commission)

Granted final approval on Preliminary Plat #96022 (Eyde)

Introduced for subsequent adoption on Zoning Amendment #99120 (Planning
Commission)

Denied the appeal of Special Use Permit #00121 (Eyde)

Denied the appeal on the extension of Special Use Permit #99151

Denied the appeal on Special Use Permit #99091 (Walmart)

8. Public Hearings

D

Rezoning #00150 (St. King), request to rezone 4660 Marsh Road, Okemos, from
RC (Multiple Family-Medium Density) to PO (Professional Office)

Rick Brown outlined the proposed request at which time it was opened for public
hearing.

Applicant’s opening statement. Dr. William Miller, 627 Earliglow Lane, Haslett,
business partner and property owner with Dr. Judith St. King, summarized the
building, practice and expansion of the site through photographs. The proposed
rezoning will offer an opportunity for rental of their under-utilized additional space
during the expansion of their business, which they have been unable to lease at
the present zoning. Their needs will be consistent with Comprehensive
Development Plan with respect to mixed uses and transitional land zoning while



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes
November 13, 2000
Page 3

preserving the architectural integrity of the neighborhood.
Public Remarks:

Joanne Kordas, 2024 Hamilton Road, Unit 106, Okemos, spoke in opposition
citing increased density and traffic in a residential neighborhood and does not
want an office property encroaching on her property. She is also opposed to the
current zoning of a medium density and asked to have this site reduced to a
lower density and the property across the street, currently zoned commercial,
rezoned to a lower density.

Eleanor Luecke, representing LINC, read a letter of opposition into the record.
Questions from Commissioners:

Commissioner S. Smith asked if there is not enough space available for parking.
Dr. Miller replied the special use permit only allows for leasing to other health
care providers. While the buildings is well-suited for their business, another
tradition health care provider would require more space and plumbing facilities
that are not present in this building. Two physicians have looked at the property
but found the leasing space insufficient for their needs. If the site was zoned
professional office, the needs would be less intense than a physician’s and would
offer a better opportunity for leasing. When asked if there are plans to add onto
the building or to rebuild, Dr. Miller replied no. When asked if the condition on
the special use permit limits what can be done on the site, Dr. Miller replied yes.
Staff replied it is not a condition on the special use permit, it is the Ordinance
regarding non-residential uses in residential districts. When asked under the
Ordinance, a law office cannot be located on the site, Staff replied yes.

Commissioner Brixie asked when was the addition built. Dr. Miller replied two
years ago. When asked if the addition was too large and is the reason for the
desire to rent out the unused space, Dr. Miller replied the original plan was to
build for the current use and future growth which was projected for five to ten
years down the road and this leaves some of the space under-utilized. When
asked if the special use permit can be modified to allow for the rental of office
space, Staff replied no because that would be allowing a use in a district that is
not allowed. When asked if the applicant could seek a variance, Staff replied
Townships are not allowed to issue use variances. When asked what uses are
allowed other than health care, Staff replied churches, schools, daycare centers,
clinics, hospitals, and assisted living facilities.

Commissioner Hotaling asked if the church is considered a residentially related
use. Staff replied it is non-residential use in a residential district. When asked if
everything else to the east and south and southwest is occupied and used as
residential, Staff replied yes but the area southwest of the roundabout is offices.
When asked if on the northwest side of Marsh Road is vacant lots but are zoned
commercial, Staff replied yes. When asked if this request would not fit the
pattern in the area, Staff replied it is all residential zoning along the southeast
side of Marsh Road from the roundabout to the PO area. When asked if the



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes
November 13, 2000
Page 4

south side of Hamilton Road is zoned residential, Staff replied yes. When asked
if it includes the area over to the roundabout, Staff replied yes.

Commissioner S. Smith asked if there was a question of a psychologist not fitting
into the area. Dr. Miller replied no. When asked if a smaller building of PO
would fit into this area, Staff replied from the perimeters listed in the
Comprehensive Plan, 3.18:1 floor area ratio based on this area, states 16,000
square feet of office space could be developed, but with the setbacks on Marsh
Road and the 50 foot required setback from all residential zonings, it would
shrink the size down to 6,400 square feet. When asked the size of the current
building, Staff replied under 4,800 square feet and the empty outbuilding has
650-700 square feet. When asked if this building is within the 50 feet setback,
Staff replied it is 54 feet from a residential area.

Commissioner Brixie asked if the building is conforming under PO. Staff replied
yes. When asked if it meets the impervious/pervious ratio, Staff replied the site
conforms.

Chair R. Smith asked if there is room to add onto the building. Staff replied
based on the calculation of 6,400 square feet, there could be room for 15-16,000
more square feet. When asked if there is an intent to tear the building down, Dr.
Miller replied no. When asked if the intent is to add onto the building, Dr. Miller
replied yes. When asked if the rezoning request is to allow the area to be leased
to non-health related offices, Dr. Miller replied yes.

Applicant’s closing statement: Dr. Miller replied he and Dr. St. King are proud of
the building and site. They both run viable businesses and have a projected
business plan for the next 15-20 years. They do not have any intention to turn
the building or property over to anyone else. The rezoning to professional office
would be a benefit in allowing them the ability to lease the extra space and offer
the flexibility necessary to proceed with the growth of their businesses.

Chair R. Smith declared the public hearing closed.



Planning Commission Work Session Minutes
November 27, 2000
Page 2

extraordinary period. It may be an overestimation of the amount of land area needed
and a range of values must be considered. Chair R. Smith asked to have this paragraph
clarified.

Commissioner S. Smith asked to have the source footnoted that cites “Recent trends are
also showing a higher demand for smaller, freestanding office buildings, minimizing the
demand for large, single-user locations” in the last paragraph on page 33.
Commissioner Hotaling asked if it is the Land Use Survey. Chair R. Smith asked if it is
the CB Richard Ellis Survey. Commissioner S. Smith suggested, for the balance of the
paragraph, that it is not necessary that the office uses be in a PO district because they
could be put in a commercial district. He suggested it be noted that these things could
cause an increase in the retail space or commercial zoning since they also fit in the NS
and/or C1 district. Chair R. Smith suggested it needs to be connected to the economic
analysis.

Commissioner Hotaling asked for Staff's comment on the document. Staff replied there
are additions Staff will make to the report from the planning perspective. It was noted
that not all of the information would necessarily be applicable directly to the
Comprehensive Plan, but this will be worked out with the Planning Commission. Format
and presentation changes will be needed to make it consistent with the current
Comprehensive Development Plan. Staff will improve the charts, making them more
readable with better titles and sources of information. = Commissioner Hotaling
questioned the statement of 26,000 per year and asked for a range in the numbers.
Chair R. Smith questioned the use of ranges and suggested using the words “average
26,000". It was suggested to state "approximately 26,000; however, economic
conditions and other factors could make this amount less or greater". When asked if
this is the consultant’s final draft, Staff replied yes. When asked if modifications can be
made as the Commission sees fit, Staff replied yes.

Chair R. Smith asked if the document is public record. Staff replied yes, to the extent
that it is part of the Planning Commission’s discussion. Chair R. Smith suggested that if
this is the consultant’s final document, to include the date, October 26, 2000 on it for the
consultant, but to put "DRAFT" on it so that residents understand the Commission is still
reviewing it.

6. Unfinished and New Business Items

- A. Rezoning #00150 (St. King) - Staff offered a newer depiction of the site and
stated it meets the current setbacks, but if it is rezoned to PO, it would be non-
conforming regarding the 50 foot setback.

Chair R. Smith asked if straight to the east and south property lines are 50 feet.
Staff replied yes.

Dr. Kerry Miller, 627 Earliglow, Haslett, offered a copy of the Russ Peabody
diagram of the site and stated Mr. Peabody indicated there is no way to use the
space with the parking setbacks as well as the building setbacks. In order to get
access to the back area, it would require removal of existing parking which would
result in a zero gain. If they were to use the existing building, they would be



Planning Commission Work Session Minutes
November 27, 2000
Page 3

required to add additional parking and there is no place to put additional parking.
The diagram does not indicate the water retention pond, which precludes parking
in the front of the building or to the side of the building.

Chair R. Smith asked if some parking spaces would be lost in order to access
open areas of the property to install additional parking. Dr. Miller replied yes.

Commissioner Hotaling asked what is the use on the property right now. Dr.
Miller replied his business is psychotherapy and all of the offices form a mental
health clinic. When asked if there are any subparts that would become
specialties, Dr. Miller replied there are psychiatrists, medical doctors who
specialize in delivering treatment of psychotherapy or psychopharmacology,
social workers who deliver psychological services, licensed professional
counselors, and marriage and family counselors. These professionals can do the
same thing except the psychiatrist has the ability to prescribe medication. A
clinical psychologist would be able to do psychological testing, and all of the
professions can direct one-on-one or group psychotherapy. When asked if one
of those specialties could have an office in the building, Dr. Miller replied at this
point in time with their current expertise and talent the wide spectrum is covered.
The only thing they do not cover are developmentally disabled, severely
profoundly retarded, prophasive developmental disorders or an in-patience
population. Those services would not be appropriate in this setting.
Commissioner Hotaling voiced concern with changing the zoning to office
because of the possibility of changing the original character of the approved SUP
on this site. Dr. Miller reported during the past year, they have been trying to
attract other medical professionals but there has not been successful. When
asked if there was a way to solve the problem without rezoning the area, Staff
replied as a medical clinic, there is a variety of medical professions that could
lease space in the building without it being an issue. When asked if they could
be separate special uses under one umbrella, Staff replied yes. Dr. Miller replied
traditional medical professions require a considerable amount of plumbing, and
since their profession does not require a lot of plumbing, they did not include it
during the remodeling. Other professions such as attorneys or architects do not
require that type of plumbing.

Commissioner S. Smith voiced concern that the request would create spot
zoning in the middle of a residential area and suggested making it a multi-
disciplinary practice taking an approach that allows this under the agues of the
medical profession as an SUP possibility. When asked if this would include
medical transcriptionist, Commissioner S. Smith replied yes as well as lawyers
who take care of people who have serious medical problems. When asked what
would happen if the attorney’s practice is not 100% medical, Commissioner S.
Smith replied it is not a big office use and if it is maintained as a residential
zoning district then it restricts what can happen in the area.

Chair R. Smith voiced concern on creating spot zoning, although he supports the
concept of creating steps from CS down to PO and then down to Residential.
Staff replied the properties to west are designated as commercial towards the
roundabout, both across and on the same side down Marsh Road on the



Planning Commission Work Session Minutes
November 27, 2000
Page 4

Comprehensive Plan. When asked if the east side is designated as commercial,
Staff replied part of it had to do with central Okemos and it is part of the future
study area.

Commissioner Hotaling asked if the property to the southwest is designated
commercial on the Comprehensive Plan. Chair R. Smith replied yes unless it is
changed in the update. Staff replied this area is part of the Central Okemos
District Study Area and since it has not been conducted yet, the study may find
differently.

Chair R. Smith suggested the commercial will not go east of the round-about but
there will never be residential, multiple or single family at the corner.
Professional office makes sense there are for this property, but if it proceeds, it
would be going against the Comprehensive Plan.

Commissioner Kebler asked if the area of the site is 1.1 acres. Staff replied yes
but it includes half of the right-of-way of Marsh Road.

Commissioner Hotaling asked what is to the extreme east. Staff replied it is
Hamilton House Condominiums. When asked if it is all multiple family, Staff
replied yes.

Commissioner S. Smith suggested postponing the item. This will insure that the
applicant will not have to pay additional money, the request stays on the table,
and offers an opportunity to work on the Comprehensive Plan over the next few
month to see if there is benefit to making the area PO. Chair R. Smith suggested
the PO will be a less intensive use in the area than multi-family.

Commissioner Hotaling asked how the applicant would feel if the request is
tabled until the Comprehensive Plan work is completed. Dr. Miller replied it
appears that this suggestion would be most affective for their purpose. He
further stated they have no intention of selling or bulldozing the site and as the
setbacks shows, there is no way to expand further. They have saved canopy
trees, are proud of the neighborhood, want to be a good neighbor and have not
received any complaints from the neighbors.

Adjournment

MOVED BY COMMISSIONER S. SMITH to adjourn the work session. Supported by
Commissioner Bonfiglio. Voice vote. Motion passed 7-0.

The Work Session adjourned at 7:20 pm.



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes
November 27, 2000
Page 8

Commissioner Kebler asked if the netting is a requirement or recommendation
from the Drain Commissioner. Staff replied it was the recommendation of the
Township Wetland Consultant as an option versus having to get a wetland use
permit. When asked if this proposal requires a wetland use permit, Staff replied
not if the netting is used.

Chair R. Smith asked if the drainage ditch was constructed as part of the golf
course and was not a natural wetland. Mr. Mory replied in order to install the
back nine in 1981, the area had to be drained so the ditch was built. The
applicant would prefer not to have a wetland in the middle of the driving range,
but one of the reasons for proceeding with the netting was to expedite the
process somewhat. In the event the applicant finds this is not the best way to go
for the range, then they will review the situation and look for alternatives to better
address the issue.

Commissioner S. Smith asked if man-made wetlands are protected. Staff replied
it can be addressed unless it is a gravel pit.

Applicant’s closing statement: Mr. Mory reported they bought the golf course with
the intent of making it a nicer facility. They realize the site has deteriorated over
the last several years, but feel the changes to the course with the addition of a
practice facility and PGA instruction will make this site a nice family and
community facility, which would benefit everyone.

Chair R. Smith declared the public hearing closed.

9. Unfinished business

A.

Rezoning #00150 (St. King), request to rezone 4660 Marsh Road, Okemos, from
RC (Multiple Family-Medium Density) to PO (Professional Office)

Rick Brown outlined the proposed request at which time it was open for
discussion.

Commissioner S. Smith asked where the Comprehensive Development Plan
states commercial is appropriate. Staff illustrated the commercial and multiple
family areas on the Comprehensive Development Plan Map. Commissioner S.
Smith suggested reviewing the entire area to determine what zonings are
appropriate before deciding to develop the proposed area at a higher density.

MOVED BY COMMISSIONER S. SMITH to postpone indefinitely consideration of
this application. Supported by Commissioner Bonfiglio



10.

11.

12.

Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes
November 27, 2000
Page 9

Discussion:

Commissioner S. Smith suggested it may be determined that this area may not
be commercial but could be developed into a professional office because it does
fit fairly well with residential. As its current use, there was only one objection,
which was that it was unattractive. This building has been improved since it was
purchase and the granting of the special use permit. There have been no
complaints regarding noise, odors, or lights and it is closes at a reasonable hour,
which is better than an apartment building that is allowed in RC zoning.

Commissioner ‘Rasor asked if this is a postponement that is waiting for the
Comprehensive Plan to catch up. Commissioner S. Smith replied this area does
need to be reviewed in terms of the Comprehensive Development Plan but the
entire area needs the review. With respect to commercial, he questioned the
type of development that would want to be situation on a fairly busy road. When
asked when the study is planned to be completed on the Okemos area,
Commissioner S. Smith replied the committee is addressing the area right now
and anticipates addressing these areas early in the year. Commissioner Hotaling
replied there are two opportunities. One is that the proposal is part of the
Okemos center, which is a special planning project, and second, it is part of the
Comprehensive Plan, which is being addressed now. When asked what is the
down side of having the applicant come back after the Commission has made a
decision on the area with respect to the Comprehensive Development Plan,
Commissioner S. Smith replied if the decision is that it is inappropriate to
designate the area as PO, then the applicant will have a delay. But if the
designation changes to PO, then the applicant will have saved the filing fee and
need to make another application.

Voice vote. Motion passed 6-1 (Commissioner Raéor)
New business
None
New applications
None
Site plans received

None



Special Use Permit #15-14051
(Department of Parks & Recreation)
September 10, 2015

APPLICANT: Charter Township of Meridian
Department of Parks & Recreation
2100 Gaylord C. Smith Drive
Haslett, Ml 48840

STATUS OF APPLICANT: Property owner

REQUEST: Impacts to the 100-year floodplain (floodway) related to the
replacement of the pavilion and portions of the sidewalks

CURRENT ZONING: RB (Single Family-High Density)

LOCATION: 4555 Okemos Road — Wonch Park located on the north side
of the Red Cedar River in Section 21

EXISTING AREA LAND USES: N: Downtown Okemos, Single-family homes and
Commercial
S: Offices
E. Ferguson Park
W: Indian Hills Subdivision

CURRENT ZONING IN AREA: N: RB (Single Family-High Density) and C-2 (Commercial)
S: PO (Professional Office)
E: RA (Single Family-Medium Density)
W: RAA (Single Family-Low Density)



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

MEMORANDUM

TO: Planning Commmission

FROM: | / /// &/

Righard F/ Brown, Ji/ AICR, CBSP
Associate Planner

DATE: September 10, 2015

RE: Special Use Permit #15-14051 (Parks & Recreation), a request to replace the
pavilion and portions of the sidewalk in Wonch Park located in the 100-year
floodplain

The Meridian Township Department of Parks & Recreation is requesting a special use permit
for the replacement of the existing pavilion and portions of the sidewalk leading to the pavilion
in Wonch Park. A special use permit is required because nearly all of Wonch Park, including
where the work is proposed to take place, is located in the floodway portion of the 100-year
floodplain. Extraction activities, such as the removal of the existing sidewalk, as well as the
installation of a pavilion require special use permit approval from the Planning Commission
pursuant to Sections 86-436((g)(3) and (g)(4).

The existing Wonch Park pavilion is approximately 43 years old and is situated near the center
of the park. The proposed hexagonal pavilion will be located further to the east of the existing
pavilion and closer to the parking lot and the restrooms. As a result, the extra sidewalk
necessary to access the existing pavilion will be removed.

Based on the submitted plans, the total surface area of impact within the 100-year floodplain
will equal 2,331 square feet for both the pavilion and sidewalk. As the chart provided below
depicts, the revised plans indicate the corresponding amount of fill volume proposed within the
floodplain (43 cubic yards) will be equal to the amount being removed from the floodplain.

ACTIVITY FLOODWAY FRINGE
TOTAL CUT 43 cubic yards
TOTAL FILL 43 cubic yards
Cut to fill ratio 1.00 t0 1.00

2005 Master Plan

The 2005 Master Plan’s Future Land Use Map classifies the subject site as Park.



SUP #15-14051 (Parks & Recreation)
Planning Commission (9/10/15)

Page 2
FUTURE LAND USE MAP
Loy e e 2 i £
) ®] RESIDENTIAL 1.25-3.5 DU/A /
[TT] RESIDENTIAL 5.0-8.0 DU/A &
=] resipeNTIAL 8.0-14.0 DU/A
[ coMMERCIAL
R oFFicE
[7F] ParK
[ ] INSTITUTIONAL
L] L] °
L]
°
°
Zoning

Zoning for Wonch Park is RB (Single Family-High Density). Park uses are allowed by right in
residential zoning districts. Wonch Park is also located in the Conservancy (CV) Overlay zoning
district. Pursuant to Section 86-436(f), recreation uses such as parks are permitted by right in
the floodway portion of the Conservancy District, though extraction activities and construction of
a pavilion require a special use permit under Sections 86-436(g)(3 and (4) of the Code.

ZONING MAP

_Z> =

UERRREANE N =

7




SUP #15-14051 (Parks & Recreation)
Planning Commission (9/10/15)
Page 3

Physical Features

Wonch Park occupies 15 wooded acres on the north shore of the Red Cedar River in Section
21. Nearly the entire subject site is situated within the floodway portion of the 100-year
floodplain with most of the remaining portions being in the floodway fringe. Elevations on the
site range from approximately 834 feet above mean sea level in the northwest part of the park
to approximately 844 feet of mean sea level near Okemos Road.

Floodplain

According to the Township’s Flood Insurance Rate Map and Study, the elevation of the 100-
year floodplain of the Red Cedar River at Okemos Road is 843.7 feet above mean sea level per
the 1929 datum.

FLOODPLAIN MAP

A\,

\X

. \ \

AN
A N

b
7NN N
\

\//
P

A\
LA
e

'

; R
’/\\”’/\ \y 4

ol

L \ N \'\
]
iy

|

[
\

A

,1
A
-

-
B
Vs

A\\ Y\/
3

_\’:\L\/

e
\

A
N

h
b

— 1
I
[

J
|

Wetlands

The Township’s wetlands map depicts regulated wetlands along the course of the Red Cedar
River. Township staff walked the subject site in the fall of 2013 and regulated wetlands do not
exist where the new pavilion and sidewalk are proposed to be located.



SUP #15-14051 (Parks & Recreation)
Planning Commission (9/10/15)
Page 4

WETLANDS MAP

VAN

\‘\
?\\\\\\\
NN
SRR

3
: ;§\§\“

N

%

N
&

N

]
,\g

iilg=t
17 =

S NN

.'4'451’7’ 77

mmuum}y/
\ “5*7(/

Greenspace Plan

The Greenspace Plan shows the Red Cedar riverfront portion of Wonch Park being identified a
part of the priority conservation corridor. The proposed pavilion and sidewalk replacement will
not impact this area on the subject site.

—’!I:‘\X‘IE I\ \1 ‘1‘ I‘I]IIF



SUP #15-14051 (Parks & Recreation)
Planning Commission (9/10/15)
Page 5 :

Staff Analysis

The standards for review of the project are contained in Section 86-126 and Section 86-436 of
the Code of Ordinances. Specific guidance for review of applications for work in the floodway
can be found in Section 86-436(i). Issues to consider include whether the project has a low
flood damage potential, whether there will be minimum obstruction to the flow of floodwaters,
whether the project could increase the flood level, and whether the impoundment capacity of
the floodplain is reduced.

The replacement sidewalk will be shorter in distance than the current one and will be
constructed at the existing grade, thus not increasing the elevation nor providing any obstacles
to hinder flood waters. In addition the surface and volume area impacts from the project will
match those of the existing one in square footage. As a result, there will be no increase in fill
volume within the floodplain. Removed, concrete, and building materials will be required to be
deposited at an upland site.

The applicant’s permit for the pavilion and sidewalk replacement project is currently under
consideration at the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ). The Chief
Engineer has reviewed the project and has recommended approval of Special Use Permit #15-
14051.

The applicant has requested the Planning Commission make a decision on the special use
permit the same night as the hearing so that the project may begin as soon as possible and
completed in 2015. Before acting on the applicant’s request the same night as the public
hearing, the Planning Commission must first suspend Bylaw 6.4a. The following motion is
provided to suspend Bylaw 6.4a:

e MOTION to suspend Planning Commission Bylaw 6.4a to consider Special Use Permit
#15-14051 the same night as the public hearing.

Planning Commission Options

The Planning Commission may approve, approve with conditions, or deny Special Use Permit
#15-14051. A resolution to approve has been provided for consideration.

Attachments

1. Resolution to approve

2. Email summarizing revisions to request
3. Application materials

4. Letter from the Chief Engineer

5. Site plans

g:\community planning & development\planning\brown\sup's\sup15-14051.pc1.doc



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE Special Use Permit #15-14051
(Parks & Recreation)

Wonch Park
RESOLUTION
At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian,
Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 14th
day of September 2015, at 7:00 p.m., Local Time.

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

The following resolution was offered by and supported by

WHEREAS, the Meridian Township Department of Parks & Recreation requested a
special use permit (Special Use Permit #15-14051) for work in the 100-year floodplain
(floodway) associated with the replacement of the pavilion and portions of the sidewalk in
Wonch Park in Section 21 of the Township; and

WHEREAS, the extraction of sand, gravel, or other materials in the floodway requires a
special use permit pursuant to Section 86-436(g)(3) of the Conservancy District of the Code of
Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, a special use permit is required for pavilions pursuant to Section 86-
436(g)(4) of the Conservancy District of the Code of ordinances; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on Special Use Permit #15-
14051 at its meeting on September 14, 2015, and has reviewed the staff material forwarded
under cover memorandum dated September 10, 2015; and

WHEREAS, the proposed pavilion and sidewalk replacement in the 100-year floodplain
is consistent with the requirements and standards outlined in Section 86-436(i), the
Conservancy District for the granting of a special use permit, it will have a low flood damage
potential, will provide minimum flow obstruction, will not cause an increase in the flood level, nor
impede the impoundment capacity of the floodway; and

WHEREAS, the construction associated with replacing the pavilion and sidewalk will not
be adverse or damaging to the public health, safety, or welfare because they will be constructed
at grade and a minimum 1.00 to1.00 cut to fill ratio will be provided; and

WHEREAS, the proposed replacement of the pavilion and sidewalk within the floodplain
will not be detrimental or hazardous to persons, property, or the economic welfare of the
Township as the project will update, but not expand the facilities already located in the 100-year
floodplain; and

WHEREAS, The proposed replacement of the pavilion and sidewalk will not have a
detrimental effect on the natural resources of the Township as it will not impact regulated
wetlands or healthy trees and the pathway will be constructed in a manner consistent with the
requirements of Section 86-436 of the Code of Ordinances; and



Resolution to Approve
SUP #15-14051 (Parks & Recreation)
Page 2

WHEREAS, the Chief Engineer approved the project, contingent on any permits or
conditions required by the Township.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby approves Special Use Permit #15-14051 subject
to the following conditions:

1. Approval is subject to the revised Pavilion Layout Plan dated September 4, 2015, and
the related materials submitted as part of Special Use Permit #15-14051, subject to
revisions as required.

2. The applicant shall obtain all permits and approvals from the Michigan Department of
Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and the Township prior to any work taking place related
to the project. A copy of all permits and approvals shall be provided to the Department of
Community Planning & Development.

3. In no case shall the impoundment capacity of the floodplain be reduced.

4. Fill placed in the floodplain as part of the project shall be protected against erosion
pursuant to a soil erosion permit from the Department of Public Works & Engineering.

5. The applicant shall properly dispose of all excess materials from the removal of the
existing pavilion and sidewalk to an upland off-site location subject to the approval of the
Director of Community Planning & Development.

6. The disposed materials at an off-site location shall be protected from erosion and re-
seeded subject to the approval of the Director of Community Planning & Development.

ADOPTED: YEAS:

NAYS:

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
) ss
COUNTY OF INGHAM )

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified Chairperson of the Planning Commission of the
Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the
foregoing is a true and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the
Planning Commission on the 14th day of September, 2015.

John Scott-Craig, Chair
Meridian Township Planning Commission

G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\BROWN\SUP's\sup15-14051.resolution.doc



Rick Brown

From: Jane Greenway

Sent: Wednesday, September 02, 2015 3:37 PM
To: Rick Brown; Mark Kieselbach

Cc: LuAnn Maisner

Subject: Wonch Pavilion

Rick,

We are modifying our Wonch Park Pavilion Replacement plans so that the cut and fill is even. We will get you the
modified plans very soon and will also modify or pull our MDEQ application. | wanted to let you know as soon as possible
because I'm sure you are working on the report for the September Planning Commission meeting.

Jane

Jane L. Greenway, LLA

Parks and Land Management Coordinator
Meridian Charter Township

Phone 517-853-4610

Email greenway@meridian.mi.us

“Creating Community Through People, Parks, and Programs”




Rick Brown

From: Jane Greenway

Sent: Thursday, September 03, 2015 3:21 PM
To: Rick Brown

Subject: RE: Wonch Pavilion

The existing square footage of impervious is 2331 sf and the new square footage will be 2331 sf.

From: Rick Brown

Sent: Thursday, September 03, 2015 2:35 PM
To: Jane Greenway

Cc: LuAnn Maisner

Subject: RE: Wonch Pavilion

What's the new square footage going to be?

From: Jane Greenway

Sent: Wednesday, September 02, 2015 3:37 PM

To: Rick Brown <brown@meridian.mi.us>; Mark Kieselbach <Kieselbach@meridian.mi.us>
Cc: LUAnn Maisner <maisner@meridian.mi.us>

Subject: Wonch Pavilion

Rick,

We are modifying our Wonch Park Pavilion Replacement plans so that the cut and fill is even. We will get you the
modified plans very soon and will also modify or pull our MDEQ application. | wanted to let you know as soon as possible
because I’'m sure you are working on the report for the September Planning Commission meeting.

Jane

Jane L. Greenway, LLA

Parks and Land Management Coordinator
Meridian Charter Township

Phone 517-853-4610

Email greenway@meridian.mi.us

“Creating Community Through People, Parks, and Programs”



Rick Brown

Friday, September 04, 2015 11:15 AM

LuAnn Maisner; Martha Wyatt; Mark Kieselbach

From: Jane Greenway
Sent:

To: Rick Brown

Cc:

Subject: RE: Wonch Pavilion
Attachments:

9-2-15 WONCH PAVILION PLANS 11X17PLAN layout (1).pdf; 9-2-15 WONCH PAVILION
PLANS 11X17PLAN layout (2) (1).pdf

Attached are the most recent plans for the pavilion replacement project. Please replace your old site plans with the

attached 11” x 17” versions.

We will plan to excavate down 6” to remove the existing topsoil and will fill with the necessary base (stone and sand) for
the concrete. The footings will likely be deeper but | do not have that information just yet, as we are still waiting on the
engineered plans from the pavilion manufacturer’s engineer. The soil will be brought offside and when the time comes

we will ask the contractor to indicate where it will go.

Bottom line, we will be removing approximately 43 cy of material and replacing 43 cy of material. The cut and fill will be

even as will the impervious.

2331 SF X 6” DEPTH= 1165 CF/27=43 CY

Please let us know if there’s anything else we need in preparation of the September Planning Commission meeting.

Thank you,
Jane

From: Rick Brown

Sent: Friday, September 04, 2015 10:11 AM
To: Jane Greenway <greenway@meridian.mi.us>
Subject: RE: Wonch Pavilion

Do you have a cubic yards calculation?

From: Jane Greenway

Sent: Thursday, September 03, 2015 3:56 PM
To: Rick Brown <brown@meridian.mi.us>

Cc: LUAnn Maisner <maisner@meridian.mi.us>
Subject: RE: Wonch Pavilion

Yes. The existing impervious of the pathway is 987 sf and the existing pavilion concrete pad is 1344 sf. TOTAL =
2331. The proposed pathway and pavilion will be 2331 sf.

From: Rick Brown
Sent: Thursday, September 03, 2015 3:55 PM



To: Jane Greenway
Subject: RE: Wonch Pavilion

Did you also subtract out the amount of pavement being removed by shortening the sidewalk?

From: Jane Greenway

Sent: Thursday, September 03, 2015 3:21 PM
To: Rick Brown <brown@meridian.mi.us>
Subject: RE: Wonch Pavilion

The existing square footage of impervious is 2331 sf and the new square footage will be 2331 sf,

From: Rick Brown

Sent: Thursday, September 03, 2015 2:35 PM
To: Jane Greenway

Cc: LUAnn Maisner

Subject: RE: Wonch Pavilion

What’s the new square footage going to be?

From: Jane Greenway

Sent: Wednesday, September 02, 2015 3:37 PM

To: Rick Brown <brown@meridian.mi.us>; Mark Kieselbach <Kieselbach@meridian.mi.us>
Cc: LUAnn Maisner <maisner@meridian.mi.us>

Subject: Wonch Pavilion

Rick,

We are modifying our Wonch Park Pavilion Replacement plans so that the cut and fill is even. We will get you the
modified plans very soon and will also modify or pull our MDEQ application. | wanted to let you know as soon as possible
because I’'m sure you are working on the report for the September Planning Commission meeting.

Jane

Jane L. Greenway, LLA

Parks and Land Management Coordinator
Meridian Charter Township

Phone 517-853-4610

Email greenway@meridian.mi.us

“Creating Community Through People, Parks, and Programs”




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

Elizabeth Ann LeGoff Supervisor Milton L. Scales Trustee
Brett Dreyfus Clerk Ronald J. Styka Trustee
Julie Brixie Treasurer John Veenstra Trustee
Frank L. Walsh Manager Angela Wilson Trustee

August 19, 2015

Mark Kieselbach

Director of Community Planning and Development
5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, MI 48864

RE: SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUEST
WONCH PARK PAVILION REPLACEMENT

Dear Mr. Kieselbach:

We are planning to replace the existing pavilion, concrete pad, and access path in
Wonch Park. Wonch Park is one of the oldest parks in the Meridian Township Park
system. In 2007, a renovation plan was created for Wonch Park and we are slowly
beginning to replace and renovate park elements that have long outlived their
anticipated lifespan.

Please accept this as a request to place our project on the agenda for the September
14, 2015 Planning Commission meeting. Our hope is to expedite the approval process
so that we may begin construction in September 2015. We would greatly appreciate it if
the Commission could review the project and take action during the same meeting.

Attached please find the following documents for your review:

Special Use Permit Application
Environmental Permits Checklist

Health Impact Assessment

Pavilion Photo and Plans

Site Plan

Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plan
MDEQ Application

NooRrwN=

Yours truly,

OZLa/MM TN o 'srar— (Q@) |

LuAnn Maisner, CPRP
Director of Parks and Recreation

5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, MICHIGAN 48864-1198 (517) 853-4000
www.meridian.mi.us




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, MI 48864
PLANNING DIVISION PHONE: (517) 853-4560, FAX: (517) 853-4095

SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION

Before submitting this application for review, an applicant may meet with the Director of Community
Planning and Development to discuss the requirements for a special use permit and/or submit a
conceptual plan for review to have preliminary technical deficiencies addressed prior to submittal of the
application. If the property or land use is located in the following zoning districts RD, RC, RCC, RN then
the applicant must meet with the Planning Director to discuss technical dlfflcultles before filing a formal
application.

Part |

A. Applicant _Meridian Township; Department of Parks and Recreation
Address of Applicant _5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, M1 48864
Telephone - Work 517-853-4600 Home Fax 517-853-4099 Email: Maisner@meridian.mi.us
Interest in property (circle one): Owner Tenant Option Other

(Please attach a list of all persons with an ownership interest in the property.)

B. Site address / location / parcel number 4555 Okemos Road, Okemos, Michigan (Wonch Park)
Legal description (please attach if necessary) _see attached
Current zoning RB
Use for which permit is requested / project name _Wonch Park Pavilion Replacement
Corresponding ordinance number
86-126 and 86-436

C. Developer (if different than applicant) n/a

Address
Telephone — Work Home Fax
D.-  Architect, Engineer Planner or Surveyor responsible for design of project if different from applicant:
Name _Meridian Township
Address same as owner
Telephone — Work 517-853-4604 Home Fax 517-853-4099
E Acreage of all parcels in the project: Gross _15 Net
I Explain the project and development phases: Demolish existing pathway and pavilion and construct a new

pathway and pavilion.

G. Total number of:
Existing: structures___bedrooms offices parking spaces carports ____garages
Proposed: structures bedrooms offices parking spaces carports ____ garages

**There are two existing structures on site: One existing restroom building (504 sf) and one existing pavilion (1047
sf). The restroom will remain. The existing pavilion (1047 sf) will be removed and replaced. The proposed pavilion

=1039 sf

H. Square footage: existing buildings proposed buildings
Usable Floor area:  existing buildings proposed buildings
See above

l. If employees will work on the site, state the number of full time and part time employees working per shift
and hours of operation:

Page 1



n/a

Existing Recreation: Type _picnickers, volleyball Acreage 15
Proposed Recreation: Type Acreage
Existing Open Space: Type Acreage
Proposed Open Space: Type Acreage

Park Features: picnic pavilion, restroom building, two sand volleyball courts, two horseshoe pits; play equipment,
park signage, grills, picnic tables, shoreline fishing, parking, paved loop pathway

If Multiple Housing: n/a
Total acres of property

Acres in floodplain Percent of total

Acres in wetland (not in floodplain) Percent of total

Total dwelling units

Dwelling unit mix: Number of single family detached:  for Rent Condo
Number of duplexes: for Rent Condo
Number of townhouses: for Rent Condo
Number of garden style apartments: for Rent Condo
Number of other dwellings: for Rent Condo

The following support materials must be submitted with the application:
1. Nonrefundable Fee. n/a

Legal Description of the property. attached
Evidence of fee or other ownership of the property. attached
Site Plan containing the information listed in the attachment to this application. attached

Architectural sketches showing all sides and elevations of the proposed buildings or structures,
including the project entrance, as they will appear upon completion. The sketches should be
accompanied by material samples or a display board of the proposed exterior materials and
colors. attached

6. A Traffic Study, prepared by a qualified traffic engineer, based on the most current edition of
Evaluating Traffic Impact Studies: A Recommended Practice for Michigan Communities,
published by the State Department of Transportation.

A traffic assessment will be required for the following:
1) New special uses which could, or expansion or change of an existing special use
where increase in intensity would, generate between 50 to 99 directional trips
during a peak hour of traffic. The proposed pavilion is not a new use

o M D

2) All other special uses requiring a traffic assessment as specified in the Township

Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86, Article 1V, Division 2.
a. A traffic impact study will be required for the following: The proposed pavilion is not a new use
1) New special uses which would, or expansion or change of an existing special use

where increase in intensity would, generate over 100 directional trips or more
during a peak hour of traffic, or over 750 trips on an average day.

2) All other special uses requiring a traffic assessment as specified in the Township
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86, Article 1V, Division 2.

7. Natural features assessment which includes a written description of the anticipated impacts on the
natural features at each phase and at project completion that contains the following:

a. An inventory of natural features proposed to be retained, removed, or modified. Natural
features shall include, but are not limited to, wetlands, significant stands of trees or
individual trees greater than 12 inches dbh, floodways, floodplains, waterbodies, identified
groundwater vulnerable areas, slopes greater than 20 percent, ravines, and vegetative
cover types with potential to sustain significant or endangered wildlife.

Page 2



The plans indicate the natural features of the site (trees and river).To the best of our
knowledge, endangered wildlife has not been witnessed on site. The wetlands and
floodplain are indicated on the plan. Please see attached letter from Kati Adams, Park
Naturalist.

b. Description of the impacts on natural features.
Wetlands: The wetland was formally delineated by the township environmental
consultant, FTCH and the report is included. The wetland lines are indicated on the site
plan. The proposed pavilion replacement project is NOT located within or near the
wetlands or wetland buffer.

c. Description of any proposed efforts to mitigate any negative impacts.
n/a

The natural features assessment may be waived by the Director of Community Planning and
Development in certain circumstances.

Any other information specified by the Director of Community Planning and Development which is
deemed necessary to evaluate the application.

In addition to the above requirements, for zoning districts, RD, RC, RCC, RN, and CV and Group
Housing Residential Developments the following is required: n/a

it

2.

Existing and proposed contours of the property at two foot intervals based on United States
Geological Survey (USGS) data.

Preliminary engineering reports in accordance with the adopted Township water and sewer
standards, together with a letter of review from the Township Engineer.

Ten copies of a report on the intent and scope of the project including, but not limited to: Number,
size, volume, and dimensions of buildings; number and size of living units; basis of calculations of
floor area and density and required parking; number, size, and type of parking spaces;
architectural sketches of proposed buildings.

Seven copies of the project plans which the Township shall submit to local agencies for review
and comments.

In addition to the above requirements, a special use application in zoning district RP requires the following
material as part of the site plan: n/a

1.

A description of the operations proposed in sufficient detail to indicate the effects of those
operations in producing traffic congestion, noise, glare, air pollution, water pollution, fire hazards
or safety hazards or the emission of any potentially harmful or obnoxious matter or radiation.
Engineering and architectural plans for the treatment and disposal of sewerage and industrial
waste tailings, or unusable by-products.

Engineering and architectural plans for the handling of any excessive traffic congestion, noise,
glare, air pollution, or the emission of any potentially harmful or obnoxious matter or radiation.

In addition to the above requirements, a special use application for a use in the Floodway Fringe of
zoning district CV requires the following: n/a

e
2.

3.

A letter of approval from the State Department of Environmental Quality.
A location map including existing topographic data at two-foot interval contours at a scale of one
inch representing 100 feet.

‘A map showing proposed grading and drainage plans including the location of all public drainage

Page 3



Part I

easements, the limits, extent, and elevations of the proposed fill, excavation, and occupation.
4, A statement from the County Drain Commissioner, County Health Department, and Director of
Public Works and Engineering indicating that they have reviewed and approved the proposal.

In addition to the above requirements, a special use application for a use in the Groundwater Recharge
area or zoning district CV requires the following: n/a

y A location map including existing topographic data at two-foot interval contours.
A map showing proposed grading and drainage plans including the location of all public drainage
easements, the limits and extent of the proposed fill, excavation, and occupation.

3, A statement from the County Drain Commissioner, County Health Department, and Director of
Public Works and Engineering indicating that they have reviewed and approved the proposal.

In addition to the above requirements, the Township Code of Ordinances, Article VI, should be reviewed
for the following special uses: group housing residential developments, mobile home parks,
nonresidential structures and uses in residential districts, planned community and regional shopping
center developments, sand or gravel pits and quarries, sod farms, junk yards, sewage treatment and
disposal installations, camps and clubs for outdoor sports and buildings greater than 25,000 square feet
in gross floor area.
SUP REQUEST STANDARDS
Township Code of Ordinances, Section 86-126

Applications for Special Land Uses will be reviewed with the standards stated below. An application that
complies with the standards stated in the Township Ordinance, conditions imposed pursuant to the
Ordinance, other applicable Ordinances, and State and Federal statutes will be approved. Your
responses to the questions below will assist the Planning Commission in its review of your application.

(1)
(2)

©)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

The project is consistent with the intent and purposes of this chapter. — YES, see attachments

The project is consistent with applicable land use policies contained in the Township's comprehensive
development plan of current adoption. — YES, see attachments

The project is designed, constructed, operated, and maintained so as to be harmonious and
appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and that such a
use will not change the essential character of the same area. YES, see attachments

The project will not adversely affect or be hazardous to existing neighboring uses. YES, see attachments

The project will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of surrounding properties or the community.
YES, see attachments

The project is adequately served by public facilities, such as existing roads, schools, stormwater
drainage, public safety, public transportation, and public recreation, or that the persons or agencies
responsible for the establishment of the proposed use shall be able to provide any such service. YES,
see attachments

The project is adequately served by public sanitation facilities if so designed. If on-site sanitation
facilities for sewage disposal, potable water supply, and storm water are proposed, they shall be
properly designed and capable of handling the longterm needs of the proposed project. YES, see
attachments '

The project will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment and conditions of
operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare by reason of
excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, or odors. YES, see attachments

Page 4



9) The project will not directly or indirectly have a substantial adverse impact on the natural resources of
the Township, including, but not limited to, prime agricultural soils, water recharge areas, lakes, rivers,
streams, major forests, wetlands, and wildlife areas. YES, see attachments

Part I
| (we) hereby grant permission for members of the Charter Township of Meridian’s Boards and/or Commissions,
Township staff member(s) and the Township’s representatives or experts the right to enter onto the above
described property (or as described in the attached information) in my (our) absence for the purpose of gathering
information including but not limited to the taking and the use of photographs.

X] Yes [ No (Please check one)

By the signature(s) attached hereto, | (we) certify that the information provided within this application and
accompanying documentation is, to the best of my (our) knowledge, true and accurate.

o e 08/14/15
Signature of Applicant Date
LuAnn Maisner CPRP, Director, Department of Parks and Recreation
Type/Print Name '

Fee: __ N1/4 Received by/Date: _ - o/ 44

Page 5



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

Elizabeth Ann LeGoff Supervisor Milton L. Scales Trustee
Brett Dreyfus Clerk Ronald J. Styka Trustee
Julie Brixie Treasurer John Veenstra Trustee
Frank L. Walsh Manager Angela Wilson Trustee
August 14, 2015

MDEQ, WRD, Lansing District Office

Attention Carol Valor

P. O. Box #30242, 525 West Allegan Street

First Floor South Tower

Lansing, Michigan 48909-7742

Project Name: Wonch Park Pavilion Replacement

Location: Meridian Township, Ingham County

Subject: Permit Application for Work in Floodplain

Dear Ms. Valor:

Enclosed please find two sets of plans and an application for the Wonch Park Pavilion
replacement project in Wonch Park, Meridian Township, Michigan. The proposed pavilion will
have a 40 foot diameter hexagon metal roof with metal posts. The design will also include a
concrete pad and pathway for accessibility.

The existing pavilion and associated concrete path and pad will be demolished and removed.
The new pavilion will be located slightly closer to the parking area. The new pavilion is slightly
larger than the existing one and will result in an increase of 525 square foot increase in
impervious material. This equates to 6.5 cubic yards of fill within the floodplain. The existing
pavilion is located within the 100-year floodplain but is outside of the wetland boundaries. The
spoils will be removed from Wonch Park and taken approximately 1.5 miles north to Nancy
Moore Park/Meridian Service Center, at 2100 Gaylord Smith Court, Haslett, Ml. There is an
area behind our office where we place yard clippings, soil, etc. This area is not located within or
near a wetland.

We would greatly appreciate your prompt review of this project application. This pavilion is an
important part of an overall master plan that was developed for Wonch Park in 2008. Wonch
Park is one of the oldest parks within our system and is in desperate need of upgrading. .

Thank you and please contact me at 517-853-4610 with any questions.
L Crnme 7N os's rar

LuAnn Maisner, CPRP (} )

Director of Parks and Recreation

5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, MICHIGAN 48864-1198 (517) 853-4000
www.meridian.mi.us

fl>



MOUNT HOPE RD.

WONCH PARK - LOCATION MAP

MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN

NORTH

SCALE: 1" =500

~otLvyoal

3 s Al



PROPOSED G(mgc::fi'l‘ E
PATH, 8 WIDE, 1

Z ".t ;ﬁ?‘ﬂ&?} \.‘4"91

20 )
2 7
727

S <

L

[ 1

FLOODPLAIN NOTES ‘
FLOODPLAIN ELEVATION 843.7 NGVD (The entire park is witin the f<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>